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CHAIR HOKAMA: .. . (gave/). .. We shall bring the Council's Committee on Budget
and Finance to order. This is the 1ih of April 2004. This morning we have Mr.
Carroll, Mr. Mateo, Mr. Molina, Mr. Nishiki, Mr. Pontanilla and Ms. Tavares
present. Chair excuses Mr. Kane and Ms. Johnson. Members, before we
continue with the Department of Water Supply we shall take public testimony.
This morning we do have two requests at this time. If you would please when
your name is called come forward to the podium, state your name and
organization if you do represent such, and you have three minutes to give your
testimony at which time the staff will inform you and you have a minute to
conclude, okay. Also, for everyone, pager, cell phones either off, vibrator mode
or silent mode, please. Okay, thank you. First person we'll have this morning is
Ms. Sally Raisbeck.
ITEM NO.1:

FISCAL YEAR 2005 BUDGET (C.C. 03-265)
.. .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

MS. RAISBECK: Good morning, Mr. Chairman. Good morning, Members. My name is
Sally Raisbeck. I live in Wailuku. I am testifying as an individual. I wish to make
a few comments about the H-Poko wells and about Pookela well, which are CIP
projects. I don't, I haven't had a chance yet to read the budget to know if they're
in there, but the H-Poko wells were originally meant for water for the central
system serving Central and South MauL They have been used lately during the
long legal battle over the EIS for drought relief Upcountry. The wells were
originally unusable because of DBPC in the water. Filters have been installed
that are said to remove the DBPC.
Last Wednesday the OW, uh, the Department held a community meeting in Paia
to inform the community that they plan to use the H-Poko water for Paia. Almost
every person attending objected to that. The question of nitrates also in the
water was raised. Apparently, further treatment would be needed to remove
nitrates from the H-Poko water. Nitrates can turn into nitrites, which are bad for
people. One participant suggested that since nitrates are fine for use on ag
crops but not for human use, perhaps the H-Poko water could be traded to HC&S
for crop use while more water from the East Maui ditches was given to the
County. However, this would not free up any lao water. One participant raised
the question that since the lao aquifer was designated did Paia have a vested
interest in the continuing use of lao water? I very much doubt that this is true,
but it's an interesting question.
Pookela well. At the February Board of Water Supply meeting, the long delay in
bringing Pookela well on line was finally explained. According to one of the
engineers, no well is ever drilled completely straight, but continual small
-2-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 12, 2004

deviations are corrected as you go. The original 1,400 gpd submersible pump
planned for the well was large enough that the Department feared to put it down
the 1,800 foot length of the well which has an 18 inch diameter for fear the pump
would stick part way down. I asked about whether the well driller would be liable,
and I'm not sure that I got an answer to that. The engineer said that each
deviation was within specs. One solution would be to use a "line shaft" pump
where the pump motor is on the surface and is connected with a rapidly spinning
cable to the part of the pump at the bottom of the well. This could be the original
1,400 gpm size, but might have more maintenance problems than a submersible
pump. The Department may be intending to go with the 960 gpm submersible
pump, but this would permanently reduce the yield of the well to 70 percent of the
originally planned and tested yield.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. RAISBECK: Another factor is that ML, Maui Land & Pine is drilling a well only half
a mile from the Pookela well which might reduce the amount of water either well
could draw due to the possibility of upconing. Maui Land & Pine has its well
permit, but not yet its pump permit. The Department has its well permit and a
1,400 gpm pump permit. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Raisbeck. Questions for Ms. Raisbeck this Monday
morning, members?
MS. RAISBECK: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Seeing none, thank you, Sally.
SChattenburg-Raymond.

Next person we have is Lisa

MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Aloha and good morning, Budget Chairman
Hokama and Council Members. My name is Lisa Schattenburg-Raymond. I'm
the Director of the Maui Nui Botanical Gardens. I'm here today to explain the
project for which $25,000 was included in the Water Department budget for the
botanical gardens. When Maui Nui Botanical Gardens first began stewardship
and restoration of the gardens we received a CIP grant from Mayor Apana. This
allowed us to purchase maintenance equipment and do emergency upgrades of
some of the most dangerous areas of buckled sidewalks. Part of this funding
was designated towards a new irrigation system.
The current system is in such a state of dysfunction that watering takes up to
many hours of staff time every week especially in the summertime. We have
retrofitted much of the garden beds with drip systems, uh, but still have to drag
out hoses and sprinklers for much of the lawn area, and the more we expand the
collection the more difficult it has become to keep up with the watering. What we
need to do is to put in a new automated system that would allow us to water in
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the evenings so as not to interfere with the daytime use of the garden. Proper
irrigation is critical to maintain our collection. Too much or too little of water can
be fatal to our endangered species. The lack of a permanent and functional
irrigation system has prevented us from installing permanent tree plantings of
endangered species for which we were hoping to do as part of our ongoing
conservation program. From the original CIP grant we have 30,000 to install a
new automated system. The planning and design have already been completed.
However, I learned that in order to install the new system all the sidewalks and
the mounds will need to be removed. Plan, uh, we were planning on redoing the
mounds and the sidewalks anyway as part of our master plan. The mounds are
too small and somewhat unattractive and will be replaced with sand and graded
to a more natural formation. The sidewalks have become uneven over time.
They were stalled, they were installed without any reinforcement so, uh, they are
also too narrow to make handicap access easy.
So I spoke with Water Director George Tengan about our dilemma. The
Botanical Garden has been working with the Water Department I think almost 14
years now to promote xeriscaping in the community. So once our new system
and sidewalks are in place we will be able to move forward with our xeriscape
community education program in partnership with the Water Department. The
garden will be a demonstration area where homeowners, landscapers, and
maintenance personnel will be able to learn about techniques for water
conservation. It's estimated that 75 percent of home use is used in the
landscaping. So that is what that project is about and I'd be happy to answer any
questions anybody had, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. What was that last comment, please, Ms. Raymond
about the 75 percent?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: About 75 percent of home use is used in the
landscaping and so that's why ... one of the reasons why we wanted to work
with the community to educate them about installing plants that require less
water and new systems like drip systems that are much more efficient in water
use. So the garden is gonna become a demonstration, uh, actually everything
we've done up to now in the garden with the mulching and the drip system is part
of that ongoing community education program.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Do you have things that you could, uh, share with this Committee
that helps document that 75 percent irrigation?
MS.SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: That's a figure I think that the Water Department
has come up with within their own research and it's part of the, uh, I, I, I think I
could find some of the ...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we'll ask the Department, but thank you very much for your
comments.
Members, any comments for Ms. Schattenburg-Raymond this
morning? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good morning, Lisa.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Part of the grant that, uh ... you're requesting from
the Water Department, uh, you mentioned about sidewalk and not being ADA
compliant.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Uh ... so part of the monies will be used to ensure
that the sidewalks are ADA compliant?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Yeah, they'll be widened. They're, they're right
now about two and a half feet wide. It's really not comfortable for more than one
person to walk down especially if you're walking with a wheelchair. They're just
not wide enough right now and over time, because they haven't had any
reinforcements they buckled and they have created tripping problems.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Nishiki.

Anyone else for Ms. Schattenburg-Raymond this morning?

Mr.

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: What ... what is your water use?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: We have no water meter at this time. We, we
have two sources of water. One is from the pump that is located up by the
Baldwin High School gym area which waters part of, about half of the property
mostly the lawn areas and then the other part ... because the garden was put in
in '76 there's, there's no water meter installed so we ... we don't know. But
we've, uh, because we've retrofitted a lot of the systems and we ... we only, we
water very little during the week. We only, uh, water twice a week in about an
hour and a half and so, um, previous waterings under the County Parks
Department the sprinklers went eight hours a day sometimes two or three times a
week. So we've cut, we've scaled back quite a bit.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: But you have no idea how much water you use?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: There's no, there's no meter installed, no.
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VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, any other questions for our testifier this morning ...
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: Oh, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Nishiki.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: So you don't pay any water?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: We do not, no. As part of the, um, we, we are
working on putting in a water meter the, uh, the youth center next door also has
to do that in order for them to move forward with their project so that's in the
works right now.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other questions for our testifier this morning? Seeing none,
thank you very much-MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for testifying today. Is there anyone else that wishes to provide
testimony this morning the 1ih of April 2004? Seeing none, testimony is closed
for today.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, today we have the continuation of the Department of
Water Supply. Let me recognize first, Director Tengan for his comments, and
then we can proceed with the review. Mr. Tengan, any other comments for the
members?
DEPARTMENT OF WATER SUPPLY

MR. TENGAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair, Members. This morning we have a, um
PowerPoint presentation that's gonna be done by Ellen Kraftsow, our Planning
Programming . . . Programming Manager and she, we have staff here, uh,
Deputy Director Jeff Pearson, um, Fiscal Officer Holly Perdido; Engineering
Programming Manager Alva Nakamura; and we have I guess our Chief CIP
person here Wendy Taomoto. So with that, Mr. Chair, we'd like to go into our
presentation.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
morning?

Okay, thank you.

Is this part of the handout we received this
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MS. KRAFTSOW: This should be in your handouts.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Is this dated yes, April 5th , thank you.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Good morning, Council Members, um, thank you for the opportunity
to present our proposed Capital Improvement Program for the year 2005, for
Fiscal Year 2005. My name is Ellen Kraftsowand I work for the Department of
Water Supply.
The proposed Fiscal Year 2005 capital budget totals approximately $20.6 million.
About 1.69 million of that is in Countywide projects; 690,000 in Hana or East
Maui; 900,000 in Molokai; about 1.1 million in the Paia-Haiku area; 4.22 million in
Wailuku-Kahului; 525,000 in West Maui; and
10.935 million in
Makawao-Pukalani-Kula. There are no new projects in the Kihei-Makena district
proposed for Fiscal Year '05. One of the reasons is that this district is part of the
Central Maui system and some of the projects, source projects which will affect
Kihei-Makena are actually located in the Wailuku-Kahului district. Another
reason is that Kihei-Makena is a newer part of the system and has not been
experiencing as many critical problems as other areas such as pipeline breaks
and substandard line sizes. There is a project currently ongoing. It's in
negotiation for design for a waterline along Kihei Road from Mokulele Highway to
Ohukai Road, and this project may be ready for construction during the upcoming
Fiscal Year 2006 budget. So this is a pie chart showing graphically how the
projects are distributed by districts, the same projects that I listed earlier.
In selecting projects we consider certain prioritization criteria and you do have a
handout of the prioritization criteria that was given to you.
These are
substandard size material or age; the condition or performance; if there are
safety, reliability or security concerns; if this project will assist in improving fire
protection; if there are compliance issues that need to be met. Some of the
projects are aimed at improving our ability to protect resources and monitor them.
Regular maintenance is part of our project selection. Sometimes things are just
scheduled and due for a replacement. Optimization or efficiency concerns;
projects to meet growing demands; and projects that would make us be
consistent with zoning or community plan designation. Most projects meet more
than one of these of criteria and some projects may only meet one especially
those that are done for compliance purposes.
A few years ago in discussions with the Board, ten programs were adopted to
guide the Department in developing its capital program. So when the ... when
choosing our capital projects we assign each project to one of these ten
programs. And I'll give you a description of each of those too and tell you what
each program is proposing to accomplish for the budget and those are source,
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safe drinking water compliance, lao aquifer mitigation, drought, storage, pipeline
replacement, pump replacement, reliability, facilities, and efficiency.
Source: to ensure adequate source for Maui's growing needs, and this is a
picture of our Pookela well. The development of this well is funded during
current year Fiscal Year '04 and will provide additional groundwater source for
Upcountry. The amount that we're proposing right now is 1.815.
Safe drinking water compliance: to ensure compliance with EPA and DOH Safe
Drinking Water Reg ... Regulations. The budgeted amount is 5.345 million. It
includes design of a well for the Nahiku system, which is proposed in the vicinity
of Nahiku. Right now that area could be considered groundwater under the
direct influence of surface water.
lao aquifer: to reduce and mitigate withdrawals from the lao aquifer. The
budgeted amount right now is 1.75 million. This is a photograph of Kupaa well
drilling. This well draws from the Waihee aquifer and was intended to reduce the
withdrawal from lao.
To reduce the impacts of drought on customers, especially those on surface
water systems which right now especially Upcountry, um, 50,000 right now for
just keeping the flume functioning well from repairs.
Storage: to develop and implement a storage plan to upgrade critical areas of
MauL This year we have 1.25 million and this is a picture of Waiohuli tank
replacement, um, that's actually done already. That's a recent project in that
category.
Pipeline replacement: to replace and construct new transmission and distribution
lines in areas where these are most urgently needed. And it says here in your
handouts that the total budgeted amount is 7.515. I'm sorry that actually is
7.535. I missed a $20,000 project that was added in there while I was away.
Pump replacement: repair, to repair and replace pumps to insure reliable
service. We have on the order of 85 pumps and they need to be maintained and
replaced regularly. Budgeted amount this year is 180,000.
Reliability: to maintain, repair, replace ... excuse me ... and install new system
elements as necessary to insure reliable service and the budgeted amount is
1.28 million. This is a picture of Hamoa well and this is a backup well to insure
service and, um, to the Hana area. And Hamoa provides water from Hana town
to KoalL
Facilities: to insure that system elements, properties and buildings are well
maintained, and that space, supplies and resources are adequate for effective
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operations. We have $635,000 budgeted. This is a picture of our Lahaina
treatment facility and the proposed budget includes construction monies to install
an acid cleaning system for the micro-filtration units. That would be a facilities
project.
Efficiency: to enhance conservation, automation and other system optimization
efforts on the budgeted amount this year is 220,000. This is a picture of our
Kamaole [sic1 treatment plant SCADA facility and one of our treatment
employees Kelly.
And this is a pie chart to show you how these ten programs are distributed. As
you can see compliance is not only a high priority, but also makes up a large
portion of the budget as does pipeline.
This concludes our presentation and if you have any questions we'll be more
than happy to answer them now.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Members, questions on what was just presented? Mr.
Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chairman. Where do you want me to start?
Just this alone.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Just for clarification, of course we will go through the projects,
uh ... right after this portion.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chair. Then I will just flip through their
presentation and just ask questions as I, as I go scan the pages.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's fine, Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank, thank you very much. Good morning. I, I
guess on, on Page 3 your source, I guess if we're looking specific at Pookela,
um, then I would like to just question that 1.815 million amount to bring Pookela
on line. Because at this particular point when you look at your Page 8 CIP
program, 1.815 is your total budget for source in this year's CIP request. Is that
correct?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Um ... 1.815 is the total budget for source, but I don't think that
that's all with Pookela. Wendy, do you have your source breakdown with you?
Do you have your program breakdown with you?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Director, maybe what could help this Committee is if you could
explain the role that Ms. Kraftsow plays with CIP and then the role that Ms.
Taomoto plays with CIP, then that might help us.
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MR. TENGAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Our planning division is, uh, with regard to CIP
basically, you know, does the long-range planning, keeps tracks of, uh, you
know, projects that must be done and once the CIP budget is prepared it's hand
over to engineering of which Wendy's part of, and she has the responsibility of
getting the projects out.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, that was helpful. Okay, department do you have a
response to Mr. Mateo's question?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Maybe if it's okay with the Chair I'll just, uh, go through
their, their presentation. I'll ask my questions, because it'll be asked again as we
review the projects and that way they can either respond to us, uh, in writing at a
later time, uh, that would be, that will be fine for me so we can move into the
actual projects itself.
MS. KFRAFTSOW: I'm sorry. Pookela was an example, but most of the source
budget, this year is actually for Central Maui projects.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Is that appropriate, Chair, I'll just ask the
questions and have them respond at a later date?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh ... what I would prefer, Mr. Mateo and Members, is if you have
... since this was just a brief overview and again I did not review this material
prior to the meeting, if you have clarification, questions at this point the, Chair
would be happy to have you have that entertained. If not, let's go to the nuts and
bolts and go right to where we want to be.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, I, I prefer moving on.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Tengan.
MR. TENGAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. What we can do for the Council and Committee
Members, uh, is to prepare, since our presentation was done by programs rather
than by County districts, what we can do is, uh, send up the programs
breakdown, up to the Committee, for your reference.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Director. Any questions on the presentation for
clarification? Mr. Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yes, Chairman. Just on the presentation, first I'd like to
ask I guess Ms. Kraftsow just for some further clarification on the 50,000 that's
being appropriated for the drought relief in the Upcountry area, if you could just
add a little bit more commentary on that.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah, that is Waikamoi flume repairs.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And these are just basically for repairs?
MS. KRAFTSOW: That particular amount, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And then my other question is on the Pookela
well, uh, that was mentioned in here, either for you Ms. Kraftsow, or the Director,
um, some of us here recall back in December of 2002 the prior Administration
and the then Water Director indicating to us that the well would be on-line within
a year possibly sooner, but then there's been some setbacks I guess related to
equipment and then we were told maybe July of 2005, or excuse me, January of
2005 and now the latest estimated completion date is July of 2005. Is that
accurate?
MS. KRAFTSOW: That would be an engineering question, and I apologize that Pookela
well is a good example of that particular category, but it's not budgeted this year,
but Wendy is the best person to ask about schedule completions.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you. I know, uh, when we spoke I think
back on April 5th and the plans I guess were supposed to have been reviewed by
the engineers and within two days it would then be forwarded to the Mayor's
office, uh, what is the status on that as well as the other question asked of Ms.
Kraftsow about the latest completion date of the well? And I ask this because
there is a sense of urgency in the community. People are calling me up what's
the latest on Pookela well when it was first mentioned to the then Public Works
and Traffic and Water Committee. You know you have one Administration
saying this and then now, you know, Administration and Director saying okay,
this is when we're looking at this project is gonna be completed. Now you have a
new Administration, a new Director, and you know, we're getting different dates
now. So if you could just elaborate on that for us, please.
CHAI R HOKAMA: Department.
MR. TENGAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I guess if both Mr. Craddick and myself we have
somewhat different management styles. My style is to be more conservative and
that's why maybe, maybe that's the reason why we're taking a little longer but,
you know, in preparing for the project we ran into questions as to the size of the
pump and the kind of pump that we should be putting into the well. Due to the
limited or restricted size of the casing going, uh, going down to house the pump,
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uh, you know, we wanted assurances that the pump would go down the hole.
And if it did got, you know, um ... got hung up in the casing on the way down,
we wanted to make sure that it would be the contractor's responsibility to, to bear
the cost if anything happened. In the meantime, we had other, other options that
came up that we could consider and so that took, uh, some time in, you know,
evaluating the options whether they would work or not and needed to also
reconsider the reliability of the pumps and the motors and ... And so anyway as
far as the status of the, of the project, um, the bidding documents are nearly
completed and we hope to go out to bid maybe some time in May.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: May. Do you ... you budgeted 1.8 million. Is that, I
mean where eventually do you see the cost of this project exceeding that? And if
it does, where those monies are gonna come out from? Is it gonna come out
from other Upcountry projects resulting in further delays?
MR. TENGAN: Excuse me, Mr. Chair, but ... the funding for the, um, the completion of
the project is from this year's 2004 budget. It's not in next year's budget and I
believe the amount is about $900,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, so that 1.8 million was just encompassing ...
MR. TENGAN: That 1.8 is, uh ... as Ellen was trying to explain is, um, that's a
summary amount of what we have programmed for 2005 and not necessarily
dealing with any particular project and that's the summary that I'm gonna be
sending up to the Council within the next couple days.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Director. And thank you, Chair, for
letting me get a little deep on this because I just wanna be assured that we do
have sufficient money for this project and because I got people calling me saying
when is this project gonna get done? It keeps getting pushed back and pushed
back, and I'm just wanna feel assured that the Department is making this a high
priority for our Upcountry residents so people up there don't feel like they're, you
know, they're being set aside if you will 'cause I am getting concerned,
Chairman. Thank you, Mr. Director. Thank you, Chair.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, if I may comment?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Tengan.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, this has always been a high-priority project within the
Department, and I'm sorry that, you know, things haven't worked out as we had
anticipated, but it, it has been a high priority and it continues to be a high priority
project and we're working very diligently to get it done.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for those comments. Any other questions for
clarification? Because it's obviously we really wanna get to the specific projects
and so I will allow clarification at this time. Mr. Nishiki.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: That, that's really narrow and just because, Mr. Chairman, I
really been thinking hard and deep about perhaps my dissatisfaction with the
amount of CIP projects that have been initiated and I'm not gonna second guess
or listen to management style and whatever or the lost of an employee that was
in charge of the CIP projects. I don't know ... I know that Mr. Mateo in his
committee has been somewhat disappointed in either opinions coming in from
the Department or the, um, Corporation Counsel, but my focus on whether any of
us believe in what water resources we have has to do with concern about source,
and the amount of money we're gonna be spending to develop source, and
perhaps another venue that we should be looking at now that the Council is cast
with the responsibility over this department and where monies are to be spent to
find source.
And mine is just because I been thinking about it and listening to a testifier today
saying that 75 percent of our water, and I don't know if it's drinking water, is
being used for irrigation purposes as a general statement, and understanding the
tie in now between where we already I know have source for perhaps reuse and
how maybe we need to look at this entire water picture as far as source
development. There is already source, sources developed which is reuse
through our reclamation plants and, and this is perhaps something that I would
hope we would spend our time and money because I have not heard except that
we're looking for users in Kihei, we're looking for users on the west side to take
that reclamation plant water. We've already set a policy in Maui County to
whereby we're going to reclaim our water only to the disappointment that we're
injecting these waters back into the ground. We've not even made use of the
Wailuku-Kahului because maybe we need an additional component on that one
to create a reclamation plant and yet we've got tremendous growth. And if it is
true that this water can be used for irrigation purposes via new development or
existing development, then maybe we need to look at already developed sources
as an alternative to develop not as an alternative, as a supplement to the already
needed water source development. That I don't know any of you believe it, but I
personally believe that we don't have any more source at the rate that we're
going and developing Maui County.
So I'm saying if there is from our existing plants in Kihei, already now in Kihei,
Mr. Chairman, to develop a waterline for a dual line that Mr. Mateo even if it's
frustrating, uh, we can spend the money to put in these lines. I think with what
we already have, and I don't know whether this is true whether it's economically
viable, but I know we've got a source already. Then perhaps we should be
looking at pursuing with haste and I say this with ... where despite of where
each and everyone of us personally feel on development in Maui County. But yet
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I think this is an answer if we wanna be responsible, then we can look at it as
source already developed, west side and south side that's already we have the
source to, to put in alternative lines to address our water dilemma. And I don't
know. It's something that perhaps we need to pursue with whatever agency to
look at this perhaps valuable source that we already have and that is creating
second, whatever you call it, irrigation lines to use to get that water from the
treatment plants that we now have on the west side and the south side that
develop good clean water for irrigation purposes. That way we could perhaps,
with what source we have already, allow more development if that's the direction
that this Council chooses to go. But I don't know what that cost is or how quickly
we can do it, but I know we got the source and so that's to me an important
component of looking at water in Maui County, but I just feel that that's a real
viable answer.
I don't know what other people feel but ... and if we're going to spend any time
and energy, then maybe that's where our resources can be. Just on a study ...
what is the cost? We always hear that oh, we got the source at our treatment
plants but we need to expand the waterline. Well, we've got development
happening in Kihei and South Maui already that I know we've got the treatment
plant right there in our midst. How much is that waterline gonna cost? And if
we're going to use it for existing developments already to create dual waterlines
for their irrigation for their yards or whatever that they use ... imagine what we
could cutback in, in the drinking water that we so valuable want to develop? Now
I'm being repetitious, but I'm saying maybe we need to look at this as a
challenge. I don't know if this is for this Department, but I think it's a challenge
for somebody here in Maui County. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments, Mr. Nishiki. You're correct, there will
be a need for a lot of coordination as well as investments, but then again, most of
us can remember the plantations. They had the old gray waterline system
independent of the drinking lines but again, you know, different laws, different
situations nowadays. So we thank you for your comments. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you Chair. Looking at the presentation this
morning, uh, there, there's an area where we say regular maintenance and I do
have a question for the Water Department in regards to that East Maui, I guess
East Maui ditch. Who does the maintaining of the East Maui ditch right now?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department.
MR. TENGAN:
flume.

Mr. Chair.

I think the slide you're referring to shows the Waikamoi

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Flume, yeah.
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MR. TENGAN: Right. We have a contract with EMI to maintain that, that flume. When
major damages occur, then we get involved also.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Uh ...
MR. TENGAN: Basically that's what I think this $50,000 is for.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I see. Has the Department ever take a look at the
possibility of increasing the size of the flume as well as the ditch so that more
water could be transported from I guess East Maui to Central Maui, Upcountry
area?
MR. TENGAN: I don't know that, that option is available to us to bring in water from
Upcountry into Central MauL My understanding is there is some kind of
restrictions with regard to the community plans.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: The other question that I have is one of the
testifiers mentioned that Maui Land & Pine is presently digging a well, uh, in I
guess Makawao area. Who does have first priority if the well should be
completed and we're not?
MR. TENGAN: Well, right now, Mr. Chair, the Haiku or Makawao aquifer is not
designated. So if, um, a developer or property owner wants to drill a well all he
needs to do is apply with the State Water Commission and the State Water
Commission will look at the application and either grant the permit or deny the
permit.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. One more question in regards to
Pookela. Couldn't we have used the contractor's pump in the meantime until we
got, we got our pump to pump water?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, um, we did look at that and the Board looked at that. The
cost to keep the contractor's pump in the well would have been substantial and it
was not economical to continue using the contractor's pump. And the only time
savings we could see would be in the ordering of the pump because it would take
some time to bring the contractor's pump out of the hole and put in the new
pump, but it was taken under consideration both by the staff and by the Board
and the cost was substantial. I don't have the figures here but they were quite a
bit.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So the Board in agreement with the Department,
uh, created the, you know, not to utilize the pump then because of the cost?
MR. TENGAN: At the time, uh, consideration was given to the concept, the pump was
already pulled out of the hole.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Tavares. Mr. Carroll. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. Just one question on the prioritization
criteria. Is that in order, the points, I think the ten points that you have there, is
that an order of prioritization or these are just the ten priorities that you folks have
and if projects meet certain ones that it moves forward? And the only reason I
ask that, and this is my closing comment, is planning consistency being at the
bottom kind of raised the flag for me. It seems to be one that would be at the top
but anyway your comments.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah. No, they're not in order. In fact you'll see safety as third and I
think that would come above planning consistency but it would probably come
above anything so ...
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay, thank you. That's for clarity, Chair, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Chair, I guess because this is,
the presentation was an overview, I also would like to ask the Department a
question that would be directly related. We're looking at a 20.06 million CIP
projection. I think my concern would be I don't know how they're gonna
accomplish 2.06 million in request. When we compare it to FY04's ability to
spend down CIP it just seems difficult to see how they're gonna accomplish this.
And I don't know if, I don't know what's going be done differently this year to
assure that that this in fact will be spent down. Perhaps with Ms. Kraftsow ...
(change tape) ... person on line that they'll be able to stay on top of these
projects, but I guess historically they've never been able to spend down. And
then I take a look at what's being projected for, you know, especially in this year
the, the, the snapshot of their CIP program, and I really have a hard time looking
at where the priorities are. I have a hard time in looking at source, you know, at
1.815 that I think is just so, so low that we're not gonna really be able to
accomplish much there. I take a look at, uh, things like the pipeline which 7.535
being projected. I don't know if this is an annual commitment that we are actually
gonna spend this kind of money every year so we're able to catch up. I don't
know if the facilities with .635 being addressed, uh, we don't even know what the
upgrade and improvements to these facilities will be insofar as a timetable to
address all of the facilities needs. The drought situation with 0.50 being
projected, although the term drought had been lifted, conditions still exist. So
what will 50,000 do to help to expedite future problems with, with the drought.
And I'm just concerned, Chairman, that I don't know what has changed in Fiscal
Year '05 or what will, or what will change in '05 that'll be different from '04 and
~
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'03 that we're assured that these projects will in fact be implemented and the
monies I guess, uh, associated with it will in fact be spent down I just have those
questions, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I think you have very good questions, Mr. Mateo, and as our subject
matter Chairman, I am looking forward to your committee's continued working
relationship with the Department to help get those questions answered and to
prepare the Department better for its near future upcoming budget reviews.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, uh, maybe the staff ... Tamara, have we had notification
from Finance when the third quarter reports may be available regarding CIP as
well as the financial?
MS. KOLLER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I spoke with Mr. Regan on Thursday and he
indicated that the deadline is the 15th of April, and what he's going to try to do is
to give us a draft as soon as he can so that the Committee will have it before it's,
you know, transmitted to Council 'cause it would be trans ... it's due to be
transmitted to Council by the 15th , but the Committee would not actually have it in
hand. So we will probably get an advanced copy later this week, early next
week.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that would be helpful. I think Department what may help us
as we go through your CIP proposal is ... well, whenever possible tie it into the
2004 budget project as well as the relationship to your comprehensive phasing
regarding programs by categories whether it be source development compliance,
transmission, drought, any of those categories that you have listed that would be
able to assist us. Members, you also have a revised version of the CIP project
by districts. The Chair would just say maybe we just work it down from
Countywide go straight down unless there's a specific project you wanna bring
up first. Okay, Department, Mr. Director, if you would go down the projects 2005
by district. We'll go Countywide first.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Before we move forward, can I ask a question regarding
correlation between the overview and then the handout by districts and it's just
specific to the source slide that 1.815 and again it's just for clarification. It's not
to get into details.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department, if you would respond to the question, please.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Looking at the breakdown of proposed CIP budget for
Fiscal Year 'OS, and I'm trying to correlate that with the source, uh, source item
that you folks had in your presentation of 1.815 and then I'm looking at say just
the second page the Wailuku-Kahului district and I'm looking at about
three-quarters of way down North Waihee Source Development - Camp Maluhia
Well 1.5 million I think that number is?
MS. KRAFTSOW: I don't have it. Yeah, probably.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So my question is because I see just in Wailuku-Kahului a
lot of things they talk about source development ... can you help me understand
what source on the slide means as compared to or being correlating with source
development? Again, I'm just trying to make a connection that's all.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department, if you please.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Um ... some of the source projects ... some of these are crossover
projects and could be classified in multiple ways. Some of the Central Maui
source was classified under the category lao because it's source development to
. distribute withdrawals away from lao. So you may find if you ... and similarly
storage some of that sometimes ends up in drought. Some of these really fit
multiple programs just like they fit multiple prioritization criteria. I'm wondering if I
should ...
COUNCLIMEMBER KANE: So again just for ...
MS. KRAFTSOW: Maybe during the break I can go down and bring back a printout that
breaks it down by ...
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. I think that would help, Mr. Chair, and again, I'm just
trying to use the numbers in the presentation compared to the district and see
where the monies are being allocated or the request is for allocations. Thank
you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. That was a good question, Mr. Kane. Thank you.
Anything else before we go down the list, Members? If not, Department. Let us
work off the list that you have prepared for us with the ten criteria.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, did you wanna go over the budget details or that matrix?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I think the ... I prefer the matrix. Anyone has a question regarding
going through the matrix at this time or would you like to revert back to the
details? Okay, matrix.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, if I may I'd like to turn this portion over to Ellen.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Department.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Okay, um ... I have mine by district ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: First project is Countywide pipe and facility improvements $200,000.
It meets the criteria of substandard size, material or age; condition or
performance; compliance, as well as optimization or efficiency.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Um ... needed for unforeseen circumstances minor project cost
overruns small emergencies like breaks and, um, et cetera, would be Countywide
pipe and facilities. Flow meter and manhole; there are two. One is in key system
location and one is just general replacement. In key system location has to do
with some advice we got from our consultants as to, um ... we need to meter the
system better at major breaks in the transmission. So that would be enough
money to include a manhole and a permanent meter and a large pipe. Whereas
the other one is ongoing flow metering at various areas, tanks and, and, and
smaller pipe junctions that are less expensive, um, and some of those are just
replacing existing meters when they run out of their life. They don't, they last a
few years only.
Hydraulic model, that's an ongoing project that will probably continue ongoing
indefinitely and that's to, um, in this case it would be to improve the inventory
data that we have in the database and then when we're satisfied that it's good
enough to go for calibration to perform field measurements and system inventory
necessary to update and calibrate the model, um ... and increase in size of main
lines would be sometimes a project is required to install a distribution line or a
main line to its project, but the size that's required for the project is one size and
we think that a larger line would serve the area better, and so this enables us to
increase the size of the line that the developer would have to install to better
serve those in the vicinity of the project.
Land appraisal and acquisition is to ... is exactly what it says to purchase land,
um, underlying either existing or, um, facilities in some cases where we don't
own it or to purchase land in order to build facilities.
SCADA system maintenance and upgrade is to install and upgrade or ... either
upgrade or install additional supervisory control and data acquisition equipment
in various facilities to improve system monitoring and control.
Security measures are pretty much what they say to improve the security of the
system due to 9/11 and subsequent policies developed nationwide those are
pretty, um, we have to speak about those in pretty general terms.
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Small, in-house, pipe replacements and fire protection upgrades, um, are to
replace there, there are places where a pipe is small enough and small diameter
needs to be replaced and it's small enough job that it can be done in-house with
the staff that we have and thereby improve fire protection for small areas so we
have an allowance to continue working in-house as well as with contractors. For
the smaller lines we work in-house.
Treatment plant - membrane filter replacement allowance. I think that you heard
Paul mention to you that the membrane filter life is ... can be 7 to 15 years, um,
maybe a little bit better sometimes and depending upon well water quality and
others things and because our filtration plants are getting about that age we need
to just always have a replacement allowance there.
And the USGS monitor drill rig is to continue a program of developing wells to
better monitor the aquifer and some of the candidates in '05 would be the
Waihee, Makamakaole areas since we're increasing pumpage there, um, and
also possibly the Ulumalu-Peahi area to look at potential future sources for
Upcountry. And those are the Countywide projects.
CHAIR HOKAMAOkay, Members, that ties in line by line with 30-1, 30-2 of your
Countywide projects in the CIP program in your budget documents also. These
are all to be funded by the Department's water funds, Mr. Director?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, that's correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA Okay. Questions on Countywide? Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chairman, uh, Chairman, thank you. I guess the first,
the first one, Countywide pipe and facilities improvements I guess, you know,
with the 200,000 running right across the board from prior all the way to 2009,
uh, based on '03 and '04s budget ... is this consistent or is this just a projected
average based on the prior fiscal years?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Sometimes it goes higher when we know there's a big something
coming up like that, but usually we, we try to budget 200,000. It's pretty
consistent with 100 and ...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So taking into consideration FY '04, those projects that
either are already on line or soon to come on line and as well as those CIP
projects identified in FY '05, is this a consistent figure to still project?
MS. KRAFTSOW: The Countywide pipe and facility improvements is, is not the same
as all pipeline projects. That's just for in-house things that we need to fix or
upgrade or unforeseen circumstances.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, it also includes unforeseen circumstances and
minor project cost overruns as well.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So I'm just saying, you know, is this an adequate amount
to take a look at considering the multiple projects that will be coming on line?
MS. KRAFTSOW: It is what we've typically budgeted.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And thank you. And if we move to the next item
the flow meter and the manhole,-MS. KRAFTSOW: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --this in no part would be consistent with the meter flow
installation and replacement?
MS. KRAFTSOW: No. Because we have flow meters in the system at places like tanks
and pumps and stuff that are just easy to get to. The manhole is where we have
major transmission branches and trunks that are ... consultants are saying to
better optimize the system we really need to know how those flows are going
better. Those would be major ... more major jobs.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, urn ... let's see ... there was the other project to
expand the Department of Water Supply facility.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah. I'm sorry, that, that was taken out of this year's budget and
was accidentally inadvertently left in your packets.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Oh, okay. So Page 30-3 we can just omit this item?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah. I think instead of that they budgeted operationally to move
our division out.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you.
relative to increase in size of main lines ...

There was, uh, I guess in 30-27

MS. KRAFTSOW: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: The increase, would you have available and able to give
us at a later time what the differences are? You're gonna go from this size to a
larger size?
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MS. KRAFTSOW: Right. If somebody's putting in a subdivision and for some reason
they're required to put in a 6-inch line but we think the area needs an 8-inch or a
12-inch,-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And you'd also be able to give us-MS. KRAFTSOW: --then it's a cheaper moment to do it right then and there while the
lines are already being done.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And you're also gonna be able to give us what
that replacement size means insofar as the amount of water that will be
transmitted as well, yeah?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Uh-huh. What do you mean by be able to give ... it's not ... these
are, these two, um, would be increase in size of main line would be as
developments comes in. So if there are existing pending developments that
engineering is reviewing now that they might know about they might be able to
give you a list of those, but that mayor may not cover everything that could come
in during that fiscal year.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Well, I guess ongoing because I would like to know if
there's a pending project that show say for example an "x" size and if it's gonna
be replaced to a larger size obviously the transmission of water now increases to
that particular project, and I think that's a good, uh, a good start for us to know
actually how much water is ... what the difference in that size means to us.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, I'll yield instead of going all the way down the
list at this point.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Nishiki.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: You know, without being repetitious I still wanna know ... you
know Danny brought up the fact, Mr. Chairman, about ... and I'm sure we're
going to get that CIP report ... my question I wanna know is this. Because we're
gonna go through all of these projects, but what is being done differently now
compared to six months ago to make me believe that anything's changed?
Because I know that there is a shortage of manpower.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department ...
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VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: I wanna hear. I mean, promises, promises, promises ain't
buying it. So what can I see by on paper or whatever that's being done
differently to make me believe that CIPs are gonna be done?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department, if you'll respond, please.
MS. KRAFTSOW: I guess ...
MR. TENGAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I don't recall making any promises to the
Council. I did state what my goals are and what we expect to do this year. As I
stated last, last week we anticipate encumbering about $18 million by the end of
December. We have ... I don't know if the Committee has gotten our status
report on the projects but we do have . . . we did transmit I believe last week
Thursday a status report of all our projects.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: I'm done.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. When I look at the Countywide
cost, uh, it tells me and, you know, listening to both the Director and Ellen here
that these are the things that we do almost like everyday stuff. In other words
when we review plans that if we need to increase the size we increase the size
and these dollars will provide that capabilities, am I right?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, with regard to that question on ... I guess it's on the
increase of size of main lines.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, it could be for anything in here.
MR. TENGAN: Oh, that particular item is, uh, in case let's say a developer comes in or
sub-divider comes in to, you know, to have his plans approved. In order to
service his development or subdivision their water system has to be adequately
sized. So when, when that particular developer comes in and we see that, let's
sayan 8-inch line is required for his project and then we determine that some,
some point in the near future that we would be needing a 12-inch line, so we
would participate with the developer to upsize from the 8-inch line to the 12-inch
line and this is what-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah,-MR. TENGAN: --the money can be used for.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --I understand that. And, you know, when you look
at floor meter installation or replacement, if the Department feels that it need to
do some of this work, then these monies will be used for that activity.
MR. TENGAN: Correct. As Ellen stated, we need to monitor our systems better so that
we can identify points within which there may be leaks. As an example, between
Wailuku and Kihei, at the current time we don't have any meters that tell us
whether the amount of water that's leaving Wailuku is getting to Kihei and this is
the kind of program that we're gonna get more heavily involved with.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, yeah. The other thing that when I look at
the ... well, this is getting away from the Countywide, but some of the projects
that you have listed over here, you know, you go through the different phases,
uh, what I would like to see maybe in the future is your target schedule dates.
Dates like, you know, when you're gonna be completed so that we know that
these are the projects that are targeted for completion in 2005, uh, you know,
rather than having something like this and it gives us an idea what the projects
are all about but it doesn't tell us when it's gonna be finished, and I think it's a
better way to track dollars.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, if I may, I believe our CIP is prepared on a 18-month cycle so
that would basically give Council Members a preliminary idea when the particular
project would be completed ... oh, I see what you mean. Okay, uh, yeah, we
can, we can do that as part of, you know, as not as part of the budget but as a
separate document to the budget if the Council so desires.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I would request that, Chair, as they complete their
project scheduling so that at least we are aware as far as the expenditures for
each individual project when it's gonna be completed or start and completed.
That way we can easily track the dollars. Thank you, Chair. Thank you, George.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, I think we'll ask the length of the project. They have 18
months to encumber the funds. Does it mean it gets started and completed in 18
months? We just have 18 months to encumber the funds. So we'll tie that into a
status of the 2004 projects. Mr. Carroll, questions? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. Under security measures first, um,
there's no tie in to the Civil Defense funds that we recently got from Home Land
Security and looking at this it's probably one of the priorities of Home Land
Security in, in, uh, firming up our security measures around facilities? And I'm
asking that question because you're marking it here with cash or County I guess.
I don't know if that's cash. But is that something that we can get from the
Federal grant monies coming forward, Mr. Chair, to the Director?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Director, are you able to respond?
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(NOTE: Pause.)

MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, this amount is funded through the, uh ... as I was saying this
amount is funded by the Department's General Revenue Fund. Should funds
become available from outside sources then and would be eligible, these costs
would be eligible for use, uh, we would program that, but as of this pOint in time
we have no idea if any monies coming to us.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay, thank you. The other question I have regarding
security measures is that over time you folks have identified it as tapering off as,
as part of your, your ongoing funding over six years ... '05 is 200,000; '06, 100;
and then it goes on down to 50,000. So is that for, is that to ... that's telling us
that you're gonna be able to do the primary or the most pressing components of,
of firming up our security measures in this next fiscal year? You've already
identified ... and I know, I can see this not to be published as far as details, but
generally speaking, has the Department already identified what facilities needs to
be secured better and you folks have a plan to move forward with spending this
$200,000?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, the Department just completed its vulnerability assessment
as required by EPA. I'm not sure that this funding is in line with that, uh, with that
report, but I would think that, you know, these are monies that we can program
over the years to take care of our security issues and the more important areas
will be taken care of first.
COUNCLIMEMBER KANE: Okay. And then my final on the security part, with that
prioritization criteria, um, the security measures are "x'd" off under compliance, is
this compliance component of the criteria some formal compliance whether it's
EPA, you know, Federal ... Whatever, is there a formal compliance that you folks
are, uh, are adhering to by having this category?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I believe these ... those projects checked under compliance
either relate to the Safe Drinking Water Act or the, urn ... Federal requirements
for security measures.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Safe drinking water, yeah?
MR. TENGAN: Correct, especially if it deals with water treatment and the quality of the
water.
COUNCLMEMBER KANE: Okay, thank you very much. The other ... and Mr. Chair
just from ... I know previous discussions we asked this question. The prior
appropriations number doesn't necessarily reflect '04 but it just reflects overall
prior monies that went towards this. Was there some sort of ... and maybe
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that's the question to the Budget Director, that number represented how far back
if we've already identified that in the program budget? And as an example we
just use that same page as security measures Page 30-30. It says prior
appropriation is $200,000. That doesn't mean '04 necessarily, correct? Or can
you just clarify what that number does mean?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Budget Director.
MR. AGSALOG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Prior appropriation the way we have done it
last year and this year's proposal, it doesn't necessarily mean it's for the Fiscal
Year '04 in this case, but in this case that particular page I think it's for the '04
one. But for other ... other pages in our proposal especially those one that have
started with recurring, recurring expenditures every year we have included prior
appropriations before Fiscal Year '04, the current budget, Mr. Chair.
COUNCLMEMBER KANE: So Mr. Chair, just on that particular issue, so if you turn the
page to 30-33 the USGS monitor well drill rig. Because it's listed under prior
appropriation but because I . . . from previous discussions with Water
Department that that rig rotates to the various counties, that this number of 450 C
under prior appropriation is from when 1999, 2000, or is it year, we're using it
now?
MS. KRAFTSOW: No, actually that was for '04 and what happened is they wanna
make some repairs to the rig and so we're not expecting to get it during this fiscal
year so we moved that out so that 450 won't be spent this year.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Finally, Mr. Chair, just to wrap up that question
under prior appropriation number so sometimes it's for the '04 appropriation and
sometimes it's not. Are we able to get something in writing from the Budget
Director to provide us with some consistency so when we look at that number we
understand what that number represents?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We'll forward that request, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. And I'm done for this round, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Budget Director, we will forward that request to allow you
time to, uh, break it out for all the projects -- what is from the '04 budget and what
is not. I think that would be easier than ...
MR. AGSALOG: I just wanna make a comment, Mr. Chair, if it's possible.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Budget Director.
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MR. AGSALOG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. When we looking at the recurring expenditures,
Mr. Chair, like road resurfacing and this security, I don't think it was in the CIP at
that time what was in this particular request for prior appropriation, but yes, I'll be
able to respond to you in writing as far as how do we determine when we
accumulate the appropriation for prior years versus not putting it there. My
understanding of the security, their security amount, uh, expenditures was in the
operation at that time and it was not reflected here. Most of the time, Mr. Chair,
the CIP page where you are reviewing is just one time item and I'll be able to
explain that in writing, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Kane.
COUNCLIMEMBER KANE: And to follow-up, the only reason I'm asking that question
because of the, my previous comments with respects to road resurfacing where it
seemed like all districts were getting road resurfacing monies and then this year
in '05 there are several districts that are zeroed out for road resurfacing. So that
now calls into question the, the recurring maintenance and that comment about
the prior appropriations represents '04 if it's an recurring maintenance item, but if
you take a look at, as an example, West Maui's '05 is zeroed out, then '06 is 600
and then after that it's 300. It really makes it difficult for us to track what that
number in prior appropriation represents unless we know consistently where that
number is coming from so and that was my closing comment for that, Chair, and I
look forward to the written response. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
MR. AGSALOG: And Mr. Chair, can I respond?
CHAI R HOKAMA: Last comment.
MR. AGASALOG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. West Maui is getting their lower main, uh,
Honoapiilani lower main in a big amount. It's not like they not getting anything,
Mr. Chair. This particular line of questioning and comment is making the
Administration not like paying attention to West Maui. We have, Mr. Chair. It's a
balancing act to put this budget together. The West Maui, Mr. Chair, is taken
care of.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No resurfacing, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members, let us get back to water, please. We will scrutinize
Public Works in the very near future. My questions upon hearing comments
today and during the term I would say then to the Department to show that we
are trying to be responsible and yet cooperative would be to ask your, this
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Department how the Council can help expedite the CIP program, and I ask that
question because probably one of the more easily attained way to assist them is
to provide some flexibility in how we allow them to apply their use of the funds
specifically for projects that are ready to go. And if you just look at Countywide,
uh, maybe what would help is to just have a project for flow meter, combine the
two for 70,000 and allow it to be used for a parameter that would take, take the
place of the two separate projects. Any comments, Mr. Director?
MR. TENGAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I guess the Department would appreciate then,
you know, given more flexibility in the administration of its budget, uh ... so
that's, that's something that we would welcome. Again, I'm just trying to see how
we can assist you and take into account Mr. Nishiki's comments. Can you share
with us since you have the SCADA, we have IFAS, we have KIVA, that can
assist you with your CIP, uh, is there a problem with the MIS, GIS program that
the County has that this Department may not be receiving the type of support it
needs to get the CIP projects done or tracked on a timely basis, Mr. Director?
MR. TENGAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I believe what you're thinking about does not
necessarily, you know, it's not necessarily a hurdle in getting our CIP out. We
have a lot of unanticipated events that occur at times. As an example, the
Pookela well we had a, uh, you know, it took a while to decide what kind of pump
we wanted to put in, to look at all the various options. In other projects we run
into land issues. The Administration has been very supportive in contacting land
property owners whenever we needed an easement or something like that. So
it's not necessarily within the County that, you know, we run into hurdles, but
there are some external things that we gotta deal with such as permits and
applications and all those kinds of things. So thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We appreciate your comment regarding unanticipated situations that
can occur and does occur, and as a Council we are well aware of those
situations, but things that I think the Members have expressed concern and I
have heard a willingness to assist is such as the Pookela well. And I would think
and hope that in future projects of the similar nature that the Department would
calculate out first in its specifications the type of pump required and then
automatically have the contractor during construction put in the right size pumps
so there's no need to pull out one pump and put in another pump. I think just
some of those efficiency improvements can assist your Department well, assist
your engineers as well and get it on line that much faster for our, for our user in
the specific region. With the USGS monitoring well, I'm assuming that all your
proposed sites is squared away, Department, would that be correct, Mr. Director?
You have candidates, but I'm wondering if it's pretty much decided that you know
where you need to have the rig sent for exploratory work. This is on 30-33,
Members.
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MR. TENGAN: That's right, Mr. Chair. We do have planned areas within which we
would wanna monitor or, urn, find out more about what's on the ground. The
exact sites haven't been determined yet, but we have an idea as to where we
wanna go and we're dealing with the land issues, if necessary.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One, one question that would tie into this, as I have heard from the
Deputy ... I guess it's the Director from the State Water Resource Commission,
uh, and the other person that came to Maui recently, and the use of even the
State using private entities to go and do wells, well development since it's much
faster than government doing itself, is there ways for private sector to help you
with monitoring wells as we allow private people to do regular source
development whether it be in Upcountry or other areas? Or are we committed to
doing this rotation with the other counties?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I believe there's two issues that you're talking about right
now. One is, uh, as far as monitoring that's under the jurisdiction of the State
Water Commission, urn ... and all well owners are required to report to the State
Water Commission. The USGS drilling program is a program that's being
participated between the County of Kauai, County of Hawaii, and Maui County
also. The three water departments have an agreement whereby they would
provide for maintenance of the drill rig and pay for the operational cost of the rig
while it's on the island. As an example, if it came to Maui this year, we would be
responsible for the operating cost of the rig and that's why we have that
$450,000 budgeted. So we're talking about two different things here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Let's say we wanna drill two, three monitoring wells in one year. So
would ... does the private sector, is the private sector a reasonable alternative
besides the USGS rig?
MR. TENGAN: It's an alternative. I don't know whether private operators would, you
know, put in a monitoring well especially if they're not drawing a lot of water from
the aquifer. In our case it's, it's worth our while, it's worth our investment into the
water facilities to drill these holes and monitor the aquifer. So despite of public
opinion we are concerned about the aquifer and we do, uh, we do take efforts to
protect the aquifer.
CHAIR HOKAMA: How many monitoring wells at this time are we required to
construct? Just one, two, three ... as you are aware with the Water Resource
Commission.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, we are not required to put in any monitoring wells as I
mentioned earlier. That's the function of the State Water Commission, but we do
participate with them. As an example, they will be drilling a monitoring well on
Kuikahi Road going up to Wailuku Heights at our tank site. We're providing the
tank site or the site for the monitoring well, and they're gonna be paying for that
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well. As you probably read in the papers over the weekend, the State Water
Commission has in the Governor's budget a monitoring well in Waihee and we
are active in lobbying for that well so that, you know, it would remain in the
Governor's budget. And if the State Water Commission needs our assistance in
locating a site or, you know, in obtaining the site, then we certainly would
participate in that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So what would happen if Waihee gets approved and your Wailuku
Heights project is still on go? What would happen?
MR. TENGAN: IfWaihee's approved?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
MR. TENGAN: Both would go in.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You would drill it both in one year?
MR. TENGAN: That wouldn't be drilled with the USGS drill rig. The State would be
hiring its own contractors to drill the holes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your response. We are on the Countywide, Ms.
Johnson. Do you have a question on Countywide?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and actually this is backtracking a little bit
because when I'm going through ... you're on the CIP, right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The question that I had, George, is in regards to the
overall CIP for the West Maui District is it because that's ... you know, it's a
private water system for, you know, a good part of the infrastructure over there
that's why you're spending less, or is it because that we've expended funds in
the past to improve and upgrade the water systems in West Maui?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I believe when we developed our CIP we don't necessarily
look at how much we're spending in a particular ... (change tape) . .. we look
more at what's required for the particular areas especially with regard to pipeline
replacement of facilities, uh, replacement such as tanks, and you know,
pipelines, pump stations. We look at where we're having operational problems
and that's the area we'll address.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, so you're not having any operational problems
then in West Maui?

- 30-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 12, 2004

MR. TENGAN: I'm not saying that. I'm just, I just stated that that's how we develop our
criteria in placing the projects on the CIP.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So if I understand correctly there are other
areas that have worse problems that are higher priority than those in West Maui?
MR. TENGAN: Uh ... I don't know that they're of higher priority but this, you know, the,
the problem, the projects we put on the list are certainly ... you know, projects
that we gotta address and take care of.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Will you be able to complete all those projects within
the CIP cycle?
MR. TENGAN: We will try. I won't make any promises.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, 'cause I mean I just have to be able to explain
to constituents 'cause I know the first question out of their mouths is going to be
well, how come everybody gets way more than we do, you know, which is typical
of what ends up happening. So I just wanna be able to understand it myself, Mr.
Tengan, so that when I get asked those questions I will be able to answer them
intelligently. You understand where I'm coming from?
MR. TENGAN: Yes, I do.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, anything else on Countywide at this time? Okay, if not, we'll
stand in recess till 10:50. (gavel)
RECESS:

10:40 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:55 a.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA: .. .(gavel) . .. Okay, we shall reconvene this Committee meeting for
the 1ih of April. We are now on Hana. Hana has one, two, three, four, five
projects. Department, if you'd please.
(NOTE: Pause.)

MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, for Hana ... we have the Hana source development, Hamoa
Well 2, $350,000; Keanae waterline improvements, $20,000; Koali tank
replacement, $150,000; Nahiku water source improvements, $70,000; and upper
Keanae tank, $100,000.
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The Hamoa Well 2, we're proposing to drill an exploratory well and the backup
well. Hopefully, it could turn out to be a backup well for the Hana community.
Basically, this project is to increase reliability of the water system and the water
source.
For Keanae waterline improvements, installed 3,500 linear feet of 8-inch
waterline to replace the existing 4-inch waterline going down into the Keanae
Peninsula. One of the benefits of this project will be to take care of the park
needs down at Keanae and also to improve on the fire protection in the area.
Keanae well backup generator, um, to install the backup generator for the
Keanae deep well and booster pumps. The objective of this project is to improve
reliability by enabling continued service in the Keanae, in Keanae in the event
that power to the well goes down.
Koali tank replacement, this is to replace a 12,000 gallon steel tank with a new
tank, uh, new tank 300,000 gallons in size. I believe this should be a concrete
tank also. The design includes the in and outlet lines to the tank.
(NOTE: Pause.)

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair. Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Kane.
,

COUNCILrytEMBER KANE: Sorry for interrupting. The Director talked about the
Keanae well backup generator, but that's not in our '05 budget, yeah?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, that's correct.
,

MR. TENGAN: Oh, I'm sorry. That's for 2006, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
MR. TENGAN: As I was stating, the Koali tank replacement is to replace that steel tank
we have now.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
MR. TENGAN: Nahiku water source improvements, it's to install a deep well source for
the Nahiku system in the vicinity of the Nahiku tank. The existing tunnel source
serves only 20,000 gallons per day. In the future they also be deemed a source
under the influence of groundwater. When this happens then the water would be
subject to all surface water rules, which may require treatment of the water. So
we'd like to replace this with the deep well.
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The upper Keanae tank, uh, we need to install a 250,000 gallon tank near the
Boy Scout Camp to improve fire protection for the Keanae area. This would
relate to the project we have, the waterline project we have proposed also.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. TENGAN: And that's it, Mr. Chair, for the Hana area.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department, uh, couple of questions ... okay, let's take the first one
Hana source development. So the design that was funded in '99, I guess that's
what we can assume 99-17 design, that is still accurate enough for you to move
forward to exploratory and construction phase the following year?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah, the project is currently ... oh, Mr. Chair, the project is currently
in the design phase for exploratory plans, construction plans to do an exploratory
well and, um, if this funding is approved we would do the well drilling, exploratory
well drilling in Fiscal Year '05.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh, you know, things such as this, would it be helpful if we include
under construction the ability for you to do exploratory drilling? So that if you
have balances in that fund you could transfer it to construction. You folks have
made it very specific what the uses are.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, normally when we do exploratory wells that's exactly what
we're doing. However, when we do drill a hole we drill it large enough so that a
pump can be put in, uh, you know, if the hole turns out to be a good hole, um, so
until, until we can determine whether the hole is, uh, where we providing
adequate water in, in good quality water, uh, you know, that decision has to be
made after we do test pumping of the hole. So although it could be done, uh, it's
something that the Department hasn't, uh, well, the Department has been going
on the approach that first you drill the holes, you find out everything you need to
fi·nd out about that hole, and then if it's, uh ... the inspection, uh, it meets your
expectations, then you go ahead and design the well.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Department. Keanae waterline improvements
22-20. What would help us is when would you move from design to construction
and what kind of requirements would be anticipated to install 3,500 linear feet of
8-inch line?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah, we may be able to request for construction funds in Fiscal Year
2006. This was put on at the end of our budget preparation and that's why I
believe the construction funds is not included in 062010. At the top of my head
. . . about maybe close to somewhere around $400,000 might be required
because Keanae is in a remote area and we usually anticipate higher cost in that
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area. And we can add that somewhere in here if you want to for the final budget,
uh, exact estimate of our construction and what year we would propose it, but I
would like to think that over and then submit that to you later.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That would be fine and, uh, I would ask that if you have zero for land
acquisition we shall assume that all easements and additional requirements have
been addressed and that we wouldn't be later faced with a request for additional
funds for such purposes.
MS. TAOMOTO: If I may respond?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the waterline as proposed should be within the County
right-of-way. I don't anticipate any land acquisition, but I really didn't have a
chance to look at this project in detail yet because it was like I said put on I think
two days before we submitted it up because of the need for that Keanae
restroom that the Parks Department is installing. So when we, when I put in the
construction I'll take a good look and see if land acquisition is required and, um,
fund for that if needed.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So they're redoing this only because Parks needs a restroom?
MR. TENGAN: No, it's not, Mr. Chair. The line going down to the Keanae Peninsula is
inadequate for fire protection and at times I do believe they have some flow
problems so that main line has to be increased.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Director. I would ask that if it's late in the submittal
process, uh, I don't have a problem with departments putting in a request to be
considered, but I would like it to be well thought out including the total project
anticipated cost. So that we can at least have a better feel and how to place it in
the line up with all other projects to be fair to each project and allow the Members
to know what kind of financial requirements would be required should we wish to
support funding for this type of consideration. Uh, let's see ...
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Question on that. The $20,000 that we antiCipate
to spend in '05, in what category should that go in? The construction area? Is
that part of design?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Taomoto.

- 34-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 12, 2004

MS. TAOMOTO: Could you repeat your question?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, I see here the request is for $20,000-MS. TAOMOTO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --for '05, of course '06 would be a construction, the
$20,000 will be used to do what?
MS. TAOMOTO: Oh, we would procure for consultant to prepare construction plans-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: --to proceed to advertisement of bids for construction.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you do the same for Koali tank replacement? We have design
funds requested, but we have no understanding what the total project would
entail or require for completion. These are the things that the Committee can,
uh, if provided, can assist the Department with their CIP projects.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the Koali tank replacement, yeah, it does not include the
construction funds, uh . . . same with the Keanae one I will work with Ellen to
come up with construction cost and if need be land cost and submit that to you
before the final budget.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, sooner the better, please, Ms. Taomoto, thank you. Okay,
Nahiku at least you put that forward for $1.37 million consideration. Is there any
modification that needs to be done to the purchase agreement, Mr. Director?
Any revisions or amendments that the County would need, would like to have
considered regarding this limitations?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I don't understand the question with regard to purchase
agreements.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh ... and tell me if I'm wrong and that's why, you know, we need to
ask. Nahiku tunnel, it says in your project 22-23, limits the source at a cap of
20,000 gallons per day?
MR. TENGAN: Basically, Mr. Chair, that's what we can count on as a dependable
amount of water coming out of the source.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So if we help, if we assist you with getting this multi-million
dollar project going on, does this allow the Department to have more gallons per
day?
MR. TENGAN: Yes, Mr. Chair. If we do develop a well, then that well will be under our
control.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, I just trying to understand because I would hope that we
wouldn't spend $1.4 million only to improve a delivery of 20,000 gallons.
MR. TENGAN: Correct, Mr. Chair. If I may add, you know, as it's stated in the
justification portion here, this tunnel source may be considered by the
Department of Health to be a source, a groundwater source under the influence
of surface water. And as I stated earlier if this is done, then the Department
would have to do a treatment plant to continue to use this source and for only
20,000 gallons a day that would be somewhat unfeasible.
CHAIR HOKAMA: When would a decision be provided to the Department, or has the
Department asked for a decision to be made so we know exactly how to
approach this Nahiku system, Mr. Director?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I believe we're staying away from that issue with Department
of Health because if we press for a decision they may make one that we not
necessarily, uh, it may be one that we may not like.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand that, but I would rather be prepared to address it than
have the, a decision that we don't like and then be totally unprepared to address
it. So I mean there is the good and bad of the request. We would ask that you
consider that so that we can help your Department plan the use of CIP funds.
Okay.
MR. TENGAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. We'll do that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Upper Keanae, $600,000. Is this reasonable two, two years after
design for this tank project?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, yeah, that is pretty reasonable and we, um, typically, now
we have a 18-month budget cycle we may be able to do faster. But we'd look at
our staffing also and this seems to be more reasonable than to move the
construction to the next prior Fiscal Year '06.
CHAIR HOKAMA: When you say staffing, Ms. Taomoto, this is within the engineering
division of the Department?
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MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah. Under my section there's two, me and another engineer. So
based on both of us this would be a more reasonable ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Time frame.
MS. TAOMOTO: Time frame, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, I know people are supporting your division to have a better
support regarding engineering. Okay, Mr. Carroll, questions on any of the
projects in your district? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Just for clarity, the two tanks, the upper Keanae as well as
the Koali tank, they're gonna be both ending up being cement, concrete
structures both of 'em? I heard comments on the Koali tank.
MS. TAOMOTO: It depends on the size. I believe our Department would do a concrete
tank from about 100,000 and after ... below that we might do a different type of
tank, and the upper Keanae tank is 250 so that would be correct for both the
Koali and the upper Keanae ... I mean the Koali, and yeah, the upper Keanae.
One comment on the Ke ... Koali tank, it might not be as large as 300,000 and
we would determine the final size. The engineer would during the design phase
as part of their requirement to look at the tank sizing requirements and set the
final size for the tank so it might not end up being a 300,000 it might be smaller.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Can you help us understand why we're going from 12,000
to a consideration of almost 300,000 and again just to help us understand why
this such a dramatic increase between the existing size and the potential size for
the new one?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah, Mr. Chair, the fire flow requirement for a tank is in the range of
120,000 gallons minimum based on a two-hour fire at a 1,000 gpm. I spoke to
the district engineer for Hana and we have no ... we cannot find any reason why
this 12,000 gallon tank was installed but it was installed prior to all of us being at
the Department, um ... but, um ... so we don't have an answer why a 12,000
gallon tank was installed we tried to find that answer for you but there was no
answer to be found. But the new tank would need to meet fire flow requirement
be, uh, sized for fire flow and also we'd look at domestic service requirements,
urn ... and that would be a thousand gallons max day and depending on the
number of lots served which all would be determined during the design phase
being it's so detailed.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is this tied into our transmission project, Ms. Taomoto?
MS. TAOMOTO: It's not directly tied into it, but we have in the Fiscal Year 2004 Budget
a Hana to Koali waterline replacement for design. And so when you get the
status report on that, um, I'm in the process of securing a contract with a
consultant to design the Hamoa-Koali waterline and the funds are gonna be
encumbered this fiscal year. The budget for the waterline design this fiscal year
is $250,000. So it's, uh, sort of tied in but not directly.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Timing wise it makes sense to ask for this now not knowing what the
transmission lines gonna be? You need to, you need to help us understand how
the phasing in is dovetailed as best as possible so that this next request makes
sense for us as if it's with the current years project.
MS. TAOMOTO: The waterline project is not gonna control the storage tank project.
Both are needed and serve separate purposes. The storage tank project we
have a problem issuing water meters from the Kapia Stream to Koali area for fire
flow reasons, storage reasons, and, um, the waterline project on the books for
Fiscal Year '04 is to replace small and high-maintenance waterlines, breakage
and so forth.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, I'm just, we're just referring back to the description and
justification page, Ms. Taomoto, which is on 22-22, and one of the justification is
because of the new transmission project resize is necessary also. So we're just
asking those questions that would make sense to us as the appropriations
committee.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, if I may, uh ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Director.
MR. TENGAN: Yeah, since we're gonna be upsizing the line or upgrading the line from
Koali to Hamoa, you know, it makes sense operationally and it's probably
required that we have this 300,000 gallon tank or thereabouts to provide for
adequate fire flow and to take care of domestic needs, and in order to achieve
the fire flow that we need through our system. We need to upgrade the
transmission line. So they're somewhat related and ... and to bring the system
up to our standards.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. K ... Ms. Johnson, questions in the Hana area?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: In general, uh, George, when you're developing this
particular prioritization list and also kinda looking at the bigger picture in terms of
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what needs to anticipate, did you get input from the advisory board at all in
helping to frame this, or is that in your estimation something that they've never
assisted with?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, um ... maybe Ellen, Ellen can address that question. Would
you be able to?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Um ... I can try.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department, if you would please respond to the question posed by
Ms. Johnson.
MS. KRAFTSOW: In terms of the priorities, the Board was well aware of the program
breakdown because they had actually assisted to put that together. They were
requesting further detail about how internally we prioritize. What we do is we go
through, I think I showed this in last year's presentation, a GIS inventory of our
systems, and you can see pretty easily visually when you, you know, you just set
it up the legend to show pipes older than a certain age or pipes of a certain
material or pipes of a certain diameter, and so you can almost see instantly
something that's substandard purely by Water Department standards regardless.
In addition there was some work done although we didn't have at the time we
first started doing it we didn't have the zoning or community plan layers. We did
at one point take our fire protection maps and by hand draw in zoning and now
we get at least community plan layers or certain areas we're familiar with we
know it's substandard for zoning.
In terms of performance, we're speaking ... the district engineers and the district
supervisors down at our fields also, meet monthly and we speak with them
regularly about problems. At any point during the year when there's a problem
somebody in staff will come in and all of this information is compiled and we
discuss at length internally what each project is doing. And so we've explained
all this to the Board and use this prioritization criteria with them the last couple
years at their request, but I don't know that they helped to develop those criteria
per se.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, I really appreciate that because what I think is
hard for all of us because this change now in the entire Department with the
Charter amendment kind of knowing what role, you know, what are their
parameters and did they look at implementation of the community plan setting
priorities within that context. And then also just simply knowing that certain
equipment or certain types of infrastructure is gonna collapse if you don't do
something about it. So J can kind of see, you know, the difficulty in coming up
with those, but wherever you can in terms of like whether it's performance
measures or community plan or if there was input specifically from the Board, I
think it's helpful for us as Council Members just to know all right these are kind of
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like how we got these priorities. It's developed in a combination of things and
from what I gather you've taken those things on a combination basis into
consideration while drafting up this list.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah, I mean, there are areas where we know there were some
improvements that we did in the Kula commercial area at one point that we knew
were higher priority because of the zoning in the area than they would be
otherwise had been. Or similarly we have many, many, many substandard lines
in Wailuku-Kahului but we tried to do some lines in concert with the Wailuku Main
Street Revitalization Plan that Planning Department was doing, or if Public Works
has a road scheduled in an area where we know we needed a repair, sometimes
that repair will rise up in priority because there's an on, you know, we can go in
together and save time to do it together.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And is that why too sometimes, Ellen, that you might
list a project and then all of a sudden like another one will kind of leap forward. If
you have let's say a choice of projects, sometimes in terms of either setting the
priority from my understanding from what you're saying is that that priority could
shift if all of a sudden Public Works is ready to move on a particular project that
might actually be cooperatively done through both your agencies.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah. I mean, we try to plan in advance like there's some that we
schedule to do with Public Works and maybe their schedule is delayed for some
reason and so it's moved back is more often in that particular case is more often,
but yes, we do that. And also, in addition, public people come to the Board
meetings and give testimony or they will phone me, urn, and any, any public
request gets put into the database and that project gets brought up for review
and consideration when we have our next meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, thanks very much, Ellen. I appreciate that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Question on two of the projects.
One is on 22-20, the Keanae waterline improvement, and the other same
question would be 22-22, the tank replacement. There's request for design
monies and after the design monies for the next five plus fiscal years there's no
request for construction monies. Is there a reason why?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah. The reason why for that is that actually, you know, forgive me
but this is really the reason why. We submitted our budget and then I went to
New Zealand for a month, and while I was in New Zealand, due to the
discussions that were going on and I think some other possibly work that's going
to be done in the area, specifically we discovered work was gonna be done in
this area, and so this project moved up. And so somebody went to print it out of
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the database for me and didn't realize that they would have to change the other
project to make it ... the construction phase also to make it consistent and that's
why it's showing up like that. Since that time it has been moved, urn,
construction to be considered in the following year although it may be a two year,
two years out.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So we're looking at both construction projects '06?
CHAIR HOKAMA: The Department will be sending us written documentation on the
total project estimates, Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Molina. Mr. Nishiki.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Uh, yeah, fast question. Do we need any EAs or
EIS for any of the tank replacements?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department.
(NOTE: Pause.)

MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah, Mr. Chair, the tank replacement projects may require an
Environmental Assessment, urn . . . because of the use of County funds and
lands which both triggers the environmental process. We can make exemptions
for certain projects if it applies to the exemption classes and, urn ... I still would
need to take a look at the exemption class and see if it relates, but replacement
is covered, but if this tank needs to be located on a different location it may, it
may not be able to be exempted.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Just as long we allow enough time for that process,
urn, you know when we do it. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other questions in the Hana district at this time? Okay, let us
move on to Makawao-Pukalani-Kula. There's some very large projects for the
year.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
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MS. TAOMOTO: Chlorination retrofit for Omaopio tank.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MS. TAOMOTO: That is to renovate chlorination system to accommodate sodium
hypochlorite and it also eliminates safety problems of using chlorine glass . . .
gas.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that all you will need to take care of this project 35,000?
MS. TAOMOTO: I believe that's what the, uh, was requested from the section, the
pump section.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Kamaole [sic] improvements - backup generator.
MS. TAOMOTO: This project is to install larger fuel tank for backup generator (15K
gallons), with concrete pad and other required safety and pollution prevention
facilities. The larger tank will enable the Department to save on electrical rates
by taking the system off the grid during peak, certain peaks. The existing tank is
6,000 gallons, um ... it can burn 125 to 150 gallons per hour when it's running.
A larger tank will help accommodate new electrical rate structure and save on
power cost.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You need anything from Department of Health? Any air monitoring
requirements or other considerations that would delay this project being
implemented and completed?
MS. TAOMOTO: We're not sure. We'll check into that. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, let's go look at this big one. Kamaole [sic] improvements clear well replacement $5 million.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the Kamaole [sic] water treatment improvements clear well
replacement involves replacement of an existing 300,000 gallon clear well at the
Kamaole [sic] treatment plant with a two million gallon clear well tank. The
existing clear well is too small to accommodate contact time and existing
demand. A larger tank will accommodate both contact time for compliance
purposes and enable the ... and enable tank to serve storage function for
system fire protection needs as well. The existing 300,000 gallon tank will still be
used to serve smaller customer area below the plant in the Maunaolu region.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Just so that we can be clear, CT means what please?
MS. TAOMOTO: Chlorine contact time.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, maybe at least once you would have the whole phrase printed
out and then you can use your abbreviations later. The number next to
Maunaolu region what would that be for? 524370-6432?
MS. KRAFTSOW: It's the project, um, object and subobject codes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Your design has been encumbered and completed. This is
what I'm assuming by reading this document.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Pleas'e.
MS. TAOMOTO: Um ... the design is 10 percent completed at this time, and we
proposed to have that design completed in time for encumbering the $5 million
required for construction.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Five million, explain exactly the source of other funds.
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah, the $5 million is a State revolving loan fund with the
Department of Health.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. This is a big project. Members, any questions on this very
large project -- five million plus project? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. So just to get it straight this is
your, you're looking at an upgrade, uh, a bigger tank from the current 300,000
gallon capacity that you have into something that's two million gallons and the
reason for this is to provide what additional storage and fire protection. Is it
because of the growth of the region that's why you're looking at this expansion
here or upgrade I should say?
MS. TAOMOTO: I believe the actual reason for this project is to meet the chlorine
contact time and that's why it's a compliance issue.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So currently right now we don't meet that contact time?
MS. TAOMOTO: Uh, I would need to refer to Ellen for the answer to that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MS. KRAFTSOW: I think that they are meeting the contact time but it's, um, not always
with operational ease so and given the need to provide more water Upcountry,
uh, additional contact time would definitely be needed.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. If we were not meeting this contact time, then we
would be subject to fines I guess if that were the case.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah, fines and reporting. We just wouldn't wanna be serving water
that didn't meet standards.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I can provide clarification on that. At the present
time ... well, you know, as stated in our proposal we wanna do the two million
gallon tank down at the Kamaole [sic] water treatment plant. And the reason is
so that we have a facility where the water can be held in, you know, in a holding
tank until the chlorine has had enough time to deal with the water, you know.
Right now what we need to do is we have to establish our contact time down, up
at the Pookela tank. So all the while that water is in the 300,000 gallon tank and
the pipeline going up to the Pookela tank and all of that volume and time is
included in the contact time. So once we complete this tank down at the
Kamaole [sic] treatment tank then we can establish the contact time down at that
point rather than up at Pookela. At times we need to put the water into the
Makawao system. As it is right now, you know, we cannot do that because we
don't have enough contact time down at Kamaole [sic] so we have to send the
water all the way up to the Pookela tank to establish the appropriate contact time
for the chlorine.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. And in terms of the time for the design
phase you mentioned that 10 percent has been completed. Do you have a
timetable when you will be finished I guess, that 300,000 design phase, when
that will be complete?
MS. TAOMOTO: All I know is we will be completed with the design in time to encumber
this $5 million State revolving loan, uh ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And what would that time be?
MS. TAOMOTO: To complete the design?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MS. TAOMOTO: Probably the remainder of this year, this calendar year.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. December 31 st

...

MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah, I mean, it's a large project and we're only 10 percent so we
would need more than a few months.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: In relation if you know where our water tank is at Lanai City that big
silver thing you see from the golf course, that's a three million, uh, gallon tank.
So it's a pretty sizeable project even at two million gallons. Good size tank. And
thank you. I thought CT was Ms. Tavares but I'm glad to know it's "contact time".
Mr. Nishiki, questions?
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Pontanilla on this project?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Wendy, you mentioned that the
funding would come from the State Revolving Fund I guess. What was the
difference in interest rates between that and, uh, if we're go to bond?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department, can you respond.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I don't know the exact rates, uh, you know, with regard to
bond issuances and the existing rate that the State would charge us, but we have
assurances that the rate ... that the State wi" charge through the revolving loan
fund is somewhat less than a bond issue would require. If I may, Ho"y, would
you have that information? The bond rates and the State revolving rates what
we're doing now? That's something we can get up to your Committee, Mr. Chair,
if it's so desired.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, the general obligation bonds would be dependent upon when
we float the bond, Mr. Pontani"a.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And more than likely the Department is correct. The SRF or State
Revolving Fund is normally much slower on the interest. So that would be a very
reasonable request for us to consider.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Carro", questions? Mr. Kane on this one? Ms. Johnson on this
project? Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, let us move forward to Lower Kula Road from Ka to Kimo and
Waokele street improvements.
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MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the Lower Kula Road project involves installation of 2,500
feet of 12-inch ductile iron pipe on Lower Kula Road and 250 feet of 6-inch
ductile iron pipe on Waokele Street and it will replace old 4-inch asbestos
concrete pipe, and it also involves the installation of one fire hydrant and
relocation of all water service laterals and, um, as noted in the description ...
(change tape) ... experiencing frequent breaks and pressure problems and the
AC (asbestos concrete) line is undersized and should be replaced.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. And again, our main concern is the amount of
funds requested is sufficient to complete the project.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, yeah, I feel that the funds requested is consistent with what
we've been getting from contractor's bids. Should be sufficient.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So can we consider this as a pretty much ready-to-go project or is
there additional considerations that needs to be addressed?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the design of this project is I would say 90 percent
complete and ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: You told us it's complete already, Ms. Taomoto.
MS. TAOMOTO: Oh, I'm sorry, that wasn't me, um ... that, that wasn't my description
but it is like almost complete. It lacks Public Works approval for work on County
highway and so that WOUld, that still needs to be approved by the Department of
Public Works Director.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: So I don't consider it complete until we get that approval so I'm
gonna ... for that reason I'm saying ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. No, no, thank you, and again, when I say you I, uh, I'm
meaning in a larger scope as the Department, but I appreciate your comment,
okay. And maybe in the future the narrative would be then as accurate as you
shared with us this morning, please, Ms. Taomoto, because when we read
complete we understand it to be complete. Okay, let us move forward to your
$100,000 for the Olinda treatment plant improvements.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this project involves the installation of an acid cleaning
system for micro-filtration units for Clean-In-Place operations. It improves
efficiency of operations, reduces chemical usage and costs, and reduces labor
cost. With the existing Clean-In-Place system, staff has to switch from caustic to
acid cleaning regimens, neutralizing solutions in between. Chemicals which
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could otherwise be reused have to be neutralized and disposed resulting in
higher labor and chemical costs.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, this seems like a pretty straightforward project. Questions on
this project, Members? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you. Now, this is something new that ...
this type of system or is to replace, uh ... or do you have something in existence
that's similar to what you're proposing or ... can I get I guess more clarification
on it, and I bring it up because of the concerns people have in the area about
water quality. I'm sure we've . . . well, at least I like the part where you
mentioning about reducing chemical usage and cost, but this type of system that
you're proposing is it something to replace, uh, is it a better upgrade to what you
have currently there?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, uh, this isn't anything new. When the plants were originally
designed there was only one tank that was put in or installed to handle both
chemicals, and we found that if we add on another tank, uh, for these chemicals
and please understand that these chemicals are not to treat the water but to
clean the filter units. So initially the filter units are, urn ... caustic soda is applied
to the units for cleaning. Then following that, urn ... you know all of that liquid
has to be drained out and we've been wasting that chemical because we've had
to throw it away and put together, put together the acid cleaning material into the
tank and then run it into the filter units to clean out the filters to finalize the
cleaning. So if we put in another tank we can maintain one tank with the caustic
material and another tank with the acid cleaning material so that we can just run
'em in and out of the filters and back to the tanks so that we WOUld, we WOUldn't
have to waste any material.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So a way of conserving your resources then, yeah?
MR. TENGAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Director. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, anyone else or questions on the Olinda project? If not, let us
move to the Piiholo plant projects. There's two of 'em.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the first is the enclosure walls for lower pump station. This
project involves the installation of walls to enclose the lower pump station at the
Piiholo treatment facility to protect equipment, protect critical equipment from
damage or failure. It reduce, reduced, urn, replacement and repair costs. The
lower pump station at Piiholo houses the facilities hydro-pneumatic system,
backwash water transfer pumps, motors and controls. The station has a roof but
no walls. Wind-driven rain in the area is damaging mechanical and electrical
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equipment. The second project is the entrance lights projects, but I believe that's
in Fiscal Year 2006? So do you want me to go over that?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Not the 2006.
MS. TAOMOTO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Just quickly, tell us why the station was built with no walls in the first
place?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I don't have an answer to that, but I would presume that that
wasn't taken into consideration, uh, rain and wind affecting the facilities there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. What is the age of the pump station for this facility? Is it
recent? Pretty old? Ten years old?
(NOTE: Pause).

CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you get back to us, Mr. Director?
MR. TENGAN: Yes, Mr. Chair, we'll do that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, let us go to the roof over ... you need to say that word for us.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, I'm sorry. Mr. Mateo, you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
Chairman, just to follow-up 24-19, the plant
improvements, the entrance lights, I just wanted to ask the Department why their,
uh, why their employee safety issues are kind of like not addressed in '05 and
there's a need to, to wait until '06 to address safety issues for the employees?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I don't have a specific answer to Member Mateo's question,
but it seems as though we could move this up, you know, in light of the amount
we talking about into '05.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. That sounds, uh, that sounds a lot better.
Thank you very much.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, let us talk, uh, review the, uh ... flo ... the roof. Let's talk
about the roof.
(NOTE: Pause.)

CHAIR HOKAMA: Piiholo treatment plant.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I'll take a stab at that. At the Piiholo treatment plant we have
flocculation basins whereby the raw water is mixed with, uh ... I forget the name
of the chemical, but anyway the intent of it is to, is to form beads gathered or
attracted from the raw water and it . . . anyway, these flocculation basins are
uncovered and at times we do have children from the schools that go and visit
the site where we hold demonstrations for these classrooms. Anyway, it could,
you know, it's, it could present a danger to the, uh, to the kids if they're not
watched or, you know, supervised adequately at the plant, and so this is, this will
provide a safety measure for that reason.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, just so we're well-informed, flocculation basins, uh, mean
what as it regards to the Department's operations?
MR. TENGAN: I beg your pardon?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Explain to us what these basins are and, uh, just so we know what it
is, please, Mr. Director.
MR. TENGAN: It's to take out the material in the water the, dissolve solids and to treat
the water, take these particles out. Well, actually, you know, that's where the
mixing occurs then, you know, in a subsequent process all of that material is
allowed to settle to the bottom of the basin and only the clean water is extracted
in the process.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
Ulupalakua to Kanaio.

Let us go to this next very large project.

MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this project involves the installation of 4,000 feet of 8-inch
ductile iron pipe and extends from the Kanaio end of Upper Kula transmission to
Kamaole [sic] tank, and it replaces an existing 2 ~-inch and 2-inch pipe. The
purpose of this project is to bring Ulupalakua and Kanaio areas to system
standards and enable 1,000 gp ... gallons per minute for fire protection.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, your design has been completed, Ms. Taomoto?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the design of this project has not been completed. I have
yet to review the construction plans, but like the other project they will get
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completed when these funds, um, State Revolving loan funds become available
we will be ready for construction.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, this is a good example of a project that needs to show the
prior appropriations as it relates to, to, uh, how we can understand the
construction portion. Budget Director, this is an example that this, this is the type
of project that if three years ago there was some design money and it would
show that, uh, if there's things under land acquisition or other you would show
that as it relates to this specific project, then that way the Members can see the
total financial requirements for such a project.
MR. AGSALOG: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Agsalog.
MR. AGSALOG: And thank you for that suggestion, Mr. Chair. I just wanna let you
know that these two big projects came about in the last week of the deliberation
and our Administration to put it and I wasn't able to ask the Department to
resubmit their prior appropriation. So it's, uh, I'll take that responsibility, Mr.
Chair, and I will do better in the future.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. That WOUld, that would also help this Committee.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Director.
MR. TENGAN: I'm sorry. I provided you with some wrong information on the previous
project. This roof here is primarily needed to protect the equipment that's sitting
outside in the ... at the treatment plant.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Director. Again, would we be correct this five
million is State Revolving Fund consideration?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, that is correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is there a cap on the amount of funds your Department can request
from this State fund?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, I believe there is no cap that we can request. It's, um, the
Department of Health is the agency that determines by the number or the types
of projects Statewide that are applied by the different agencies the priority that
they will fund and we put in our request and this, these two projects were
approved for the upcoming fiscal year.
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MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, we need to add another statement. I'm sure the State
Department of Health looks at our ability to repay the loans also.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm not worried about us being able to pay. I'm just wondering if
there's more funds with that type of interest, would be wise for us to continue to
see what else we can fund from the revolving, uh, from the State. Members,·
large projects, questions regarding this? Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Nishiki.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Carroll. Mr. Kane. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The only question I had would be one that a
constituent posed because I guess there was some earlier I guess laying of
pipeline or there's something going on out in that area because I received a call.
They expressed a concern about, because Kanaio's more remote area and then
when we upgrade these kinds of systems to provide for the water needs, their
concern was that isn't that going to encourage more development in that area,
more urbanization. And they were feeling, you know, in terms of a conflict with
some of the farms and the farming operations out in that area. So do you have
any comment that you could give to this individual?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I guess in reality that could happen but, you know, the
Department ... that's not something within the control of the Department. It lies
within I believe the ... probably that, uh, that control is within the Council. So it's
not something that we would decide on as far as development taking place, but
we would be able to provide water to the existing customers and if need be,
provide for some expansion.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Do you know offhand, Mr. Tengan, if those were
mostly farmers out in that area and some people that may even have
subsistence level farms that will be benefiting from this?
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MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I'm only aware of the, beside Ulupalakua Ranch, uh, there's
one, a large strawberry farm out there. There may be some other people that
may be doing some farming but, you know, I haven't verified that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, thank you. And the reason I ask this, Mr. Chair,
is that basically when we look the cost of community services I think just from my
perspective the question that was posed to me by the individual is a very good
one. That when you're expending the monies in an area where let's say if the
farmers needs are currently being served and they're having adequate water
supply or storage, whatever it is, then if we're going to have a huge cost like this,
how is that actually going to work in the bigger picture -- the cost of community
services versus the number of people that will be served? And as we've heard
before from many times from the Department the cost of the meters doesn't and
particularly with the cost expenditure like this doesn't begin to pay for the carrying
charges and even for the capital investment on such a project in such a large
area. So I think that when we get asked these questions it's really important for
me at least to be able to respond in an intelligent way that yes, we've taken that
all into consideration and it makes sense because of diversified farming
opportunities or providing additional farming opportunities. But if we're going to
urbanize or if we're going to maybe divert some of the resources that might help
serve Hawaiian Home Lands out there, if part of this is going to serve people that
may have homesteads in that area I, I think that's very good, but again, I think
these questions are good to ask.
I have one other question that it pertains to this, Mr. Tengan, but it was based on
an article that I read in the paper, and the EPA gives grants for water quality and
for different water projects to your Department. Is that correct?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, we don't have grants from the EPA. The only funding they
provide is through the Revolving Loan Funds.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Only through Revolving Loan.
MR. TENGAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. TENGAN: They may be giving ... I'll take that back. I think Ellen is familiar with
some EPA grants.
MS. KRAFTSOW: We have some EPA grants for things like watershed protection and
wellhead protection but not for capital. For capital programs those go through
the SRF.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Yeah, and the only reason I asked that
question, Mr. Chair, is because the article that appeared about how the State
funds may be at risk due to our noncompliance with certain EPA mandates.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that comment, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Department, quick, uh, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. If the ... on that same issue of
Ulupalakua to Kanaio, can you tell us why then in light of Member Johnson's
question I thought that was a good question regarding question of urbanization or
keeping it farming, but my question would tie in to your chart that you handed out
to us showing an "x" under planning consistency. And I don't know if Ellen can
help us or the Director can help us. Ulupalakua water system improvements -Ulupalakua to Kanaio is "x'd" off in planning consistency. Can you help us or
broaden your comments on this particular item?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I'll let Ellen respond to that.
MS. KRAFTSOW: You know I would consider that a mistake. Actually, I would not
have put an "x" there.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay, then, Mr. Chair, my question WOUld, if there's not an
"x" under compliance, would . . . although it was listed earlier in a previous
question Federal requirements safe water, Safe Drinking Water Act, because you
folks have talked about bringing this system to standards for a thousand gallons
per minute for fire protection would that also be considered a compliance factor?
MS. KRAFTSOW: That's a safety issue, but there have been, there was a period for
going on for years when members of the community came into the Board while
we were still under the Board repeatedly, repeatedly, repeatedly, uh, people that
had been apparently or felt they had been promised meters for decades, uh,
farmers that were not able to, that had to carry water at great distances, and so
the Board prioritized the project. And it got far enough that we figured that
maybe we could get some external funds, and that's why it rose to the top.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: That's that water systems study 00-35 that you have listed
under your remarks?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Uh ...
~
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Ulupalakua-Kanaio Water System Study.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Let me find that page.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I don't know if there, what relevance does that have and
that's my final question to this.
(NOTE: Pause.)

MS. KRAFTSOW: It's not, it's not on my copy here but, yeah, that would probably be
that, that would be, uh, I like to, the, the remarks used to be an in-house only
thing and I would put . . . track information that I could about what had,
information I got from engineering about the status of the design or the projects
or the encumbrance numbers when I got it there.
COUNCLMEMBER KANE: Okay, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Members, you know what? We'll finish up this
district after the midday break. I know many of you have things to do so we'll
stand in recess until 1:30 p.m. this afternoon. . .. (gavel) ...
RECESS:

12:04 p.m.

RECONVENE:

1:34 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA: .. .(gavel) . .. We shall bring this Committee meeting back to order.
Members, at the break we were finishing up the consideration $5 million SRF
funds for the Ulupalakua water system improvements - Ulupalakua to Kanaio.
Pretty sure we finished up but just in case anyone has an additional question
regarding this specific project. Seeing none, let us move to the Upper Kula
project, Alae tank to Kawehi Place.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this project involves the installation of 4,000 feet of 12-inch
ductile iron pipe to connect the Alae, new Alae tank to the Upper Kula
transmission and to upgrade existing 8-inch segments. The design is currently in
prog ... sorry. We have a design contract with Sato & Associates, but this
20,000 is for land acquisition that is necessary for the transmission.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Taomoto, what type of ... obviously $20,000 may not be
a whole lot to certain projects, but what type of land acquisition are you looking
at, please? It's just a remnant easement consideration or is there some other
requ irements?
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MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, we're looking at waterline easement acquisition and 20,000
is just our estimate of what may be necessary to acquire the waterline
easements through private property between Alae tank and Kawehi Place.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members, any questions regarding this one since there's
some land acquisition consideration? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. As far as the design, do you
have any monies budgeted for the design or is it completed?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the design is, has been encumbered and that was, uh, I
believe encumbered in Fiscal Year '01 with Sato & Associates. Because the
project involves extensive land waterline acquisition we are still ... we're trying
to resolve that before we move into the design in the event that the alignment
needs to be revised because of the waterline acquisition. So we haven't
proceeded, I mean given notice to proceed with the design as of today.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Do you foresee any changes on the design?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, we don't foresee any changes with the design, uh, other
than the alignment and that's the reason why we haven't given notice to proceed
with the design of the actual waterline because we are wanting to get a better
understanding of the land acquisition, get that out of the way because if we did
proceed with the design and the acquisition wasn't successful through the entire
route there might need to be a realignment and a design change order. So we're
trying to get the land portion out of our way first.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other questions regarding this project, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My only question is because on this one you're
installing 4,000 feet of 12-inch line to upgrade the existing 8-inch segments and
then on the previous one Ulupalakua to Kanaio you've got replace existing 2 %inch and 2-inch sections with 8-inch line. So I guess my question is in this
situation why wouldn't it be the same, uh, you know, let's say for the Ulupalakua
to Kanaio and go to the 12-inch as opposed to going to the 8-inch?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, I believe the reason that we're going with a 12-inch size for
this Upper Kula from Alae to Kawehi is the demand is larger in this area, between
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Alae, between this service area versus the Kanaio area and the size was, I would
assume, determined by engineering calculations.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, but I guess my ultimate question is that if you're
gonna, you know, look at that kind of an expenditure of capital, how much more
expensive is it to do the 12-inch as opposed to doing the 8-inch in the previous
one or is it a lot more expensive?
MS. TAOMOTO: The expense for the materials is all we're looking at because the
trench would be the same width, but I think we would have other issues not
necessarily the material cost issues which is a smaller dollar for actually more,
uh, like your concerns of development and stuff like that, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, so right now what's going out to Kanaio would
not be able to accommodate perhaps some of the more urban type development
with that size of a line. 'Cause I mean obviously a 2-inch or a 2 %-inch is really
small, but I don't know. I mean it's just a question because I'm an unskilled
person in this area. I guess I'm looking at all things being equal, what was the
rationale, and if you say that it was over concerns of the need or lack thereof.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Ulupalakua-Kanaio, it wouldn't meet fire protection demands even
for existing structures for ago I mean, a 4-inch line, anything less than a 6-inch
line basically won't protect much of anything.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, but my question was mainly when I compared
this to the next project that we're talking about right now, I was looking on a
comparative basis. We're upgrading to a 12-inch line for the following project
and then my question was going back to this after looking at the one that we're
looking at right now why weren't they both 12-inch?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Well, because that's towards the very end of the transmission line
and the community plans don't talk about urban growth in that area and so you
would have your transmission lines be larger where the demand is higher and
smaller as you move further out.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, so it is tied directly to urban type infrastructure
as opposed to a more rural?
MS. KRAFTSOW: The 12-inch versus the 8-inch?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah and there's certain commercial buildings that would require a
12-inch.

- 56-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 12, 2004

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, anyone else on this project, Members? You had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, one quick question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Pontanila.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
Road?

The Alae tank is located mauka of Upper Kula

MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the existing Alae tank is located makai of the existing
transmission. The proposed Alae tank, which is currently in the design phase, is
mauka of the transmission.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Are you keeping the old tank also as part of the system or you just
going to replace it with the new tank?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, we are replacing the tank and not using, gonna utilize the
existing Alae tank as ... it's not in use right now and it will not be a part of the
proposed Alae tank replacement. It would just be ... remain not in service.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh, okay. Does it have, I guess since part of the morning's
presentation, is there any useful life left as far as storage even if it's a ... and
again I don't know how big the tank is, but does it make sense to use the existing
tank just as a backup storage facility or not?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, at this time I don't think we could answer your question.
There might be issues with it being deteriorating being that we haven't used it for
such a long time. We would need to look at that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Again, I just ask that since it's part of the presentation regarding
drought and other areas, storage. Again, we're just wondering if there was
something useful left in that existing tank that could be considered, and if you
need "x" dollars which would be reasonable so that it could be part of a backup
storage facility or to help maintain certain pressure in your lines, uh, I would say
we would, uh, this Committee would be open to considering those type of
request. So when you're ready if you could respond to the Committee, please,
that would be helpful.
The 50,000 Waikamoi flume repair.
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MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this project is to repair flume and intakes on the Upper Kula
line, improve reliability of source for Upcountry area, minimize water losses. Old
water flume is in forest reserve and it requires regular maintenance. Two of the
seven trestles completed as of the end of Fiscal Year 2001. Repairs were made
only . . . only repairs were made during Fiscal Year 2002. Repair of the
remaining trestles is ongoing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Would the five remaining trestles of the seven be able to be
completed in this or the upcoming budget year, would you know?
MS. KRAFTSOW: I think that because of the age of the system repair and maintenance
to that system is something that needs to be ongoing. Even if they finished it
they'd have to go back and start doing it again gradually so I think that they just
try to rotate.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Is there a Department assessment regarding replacement
instead of repair and maintenance for the flume program as part of your
long-term strategy?
MS. KRAFTSOW: I think it's been discussed before, but the flume as it is the geometry
of it apparently can carry a lot more water than pipes that we would likely be able
to get for the same weight in crossing those steep gulches or something. And so
I think it was determined that for the time being it was actually a pretty
reasonable solution to continue to use the flume.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Would that have been part of the comments provided in that study
the Department did the Caldwell study or the Brown study? Did they make
comment regarding the flume?
MS. KRAFTSOW: The asset model? No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Any questions on Waikamoi? Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Maybe just to understand what an
advantage would be, you know, like we're spreading out 50,000 from prior years
a" the way to 2010. Why don't we just cough up the 350,000, get the work done,
and implement some kind of a standard maintenance program instead of like
piecemealing it $50,000 for the last next number of years. What is the advantage
of going that route versus doing the job all together?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, this $50,000 ever year that's what we budget to, uh, maintain
the flume. Occasionally, we do have some emergencies like during the current
year we had a landslide out in the area and it, you know, it toppled down the
flume in one area and so we had to go in and reconstruct the flume in that area
and this is what this money is used for. It's to take care of these kinds of
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emergencies and our normal repair and maintenance. So it's not as though that
we need to replace the entire flume at one time. It's normally ... it's basically to
take care of normal operations and maintenance.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Anyone else on the Waikamoi request? Mr. Kane.
COUNCLIMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. On the first page of the matrix, the
second matrix that was handed out where it separated out the drought,
efficiency, facilities, et cetera. So on the top of the first page Waikamoi Flume
Repair Maintenance, under the remarks it talks about repairs only during 2002.
And I'm just assuming, Mr. Director, that that didn't include your most, uh, your
latest comment about the landslide situation. So are we saying that we didn't
have any type of repair or maintenance during '03 and just that landslide issue in
'04 or can you just again clarify?
MR. TENGAN: We might have done some maintenance in 2003. I believe the
information was unavailable at the time that this CIP sheet was prepared.
COUNCLMEMBER KANE: So '04 the 50,000 that you have this current year has been
utilized because of the landslide situation and the emergency repair that you had
to make?
MR. TENGAN: Yes. I'm not sure that the entire amount was used.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Anyone else? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. You said that some of these flumes
crosses gulches. Should a section crossing a gulch somehow collapse what is
the backup plan to provide water to that particular area and how long does it take
to repair an area that's crossing the gulch?
MR. TENGAN: We have other intakes that going into the Upper Kula system and we do
have about 130 million gallons of storage up in that system there. I believe,
when these kinds of events happen, uh, you know, hopefully, we have the
reservoir pretty much full. If it's not, then we do have some capability of pumping
water from the lower system also.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Molokai.

Thank you.

Anyone else?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: There was one more project that was inadvertently I
guess ... I talked to Water Department earlier, there's one more project that was
put in West Maui but it's West Kuiaha Road and that actually should be in with
the Makawao ... the Upcountry projects.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Haiku-Paia.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we'll catch, uh, we'll review that Ms. Johnson under
Paia-Haiku district.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, I'm sorry, in Paia-Haiku. Sorry.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we'll take that right after Molokai. Members, Molokai starts on
29-18. Eight hundred thousand ... excuse me, 800 ... $80,000.
MS. TAOMOTO:
Mr. Chair, Ala Malama Drive waterline improvement involve
installation of 3,500 feet of 12-inch ductile iron pipe from hydrant number 50 to
Kamehameha V Highway.
This project will improve fire protection in a
commercial area and remove old substandard transite pipe.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Mateo, questions on this project?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair. Design, design is like
80,000 for this year. There's a two years after that you look like actual
construction in '07. Is there a reason for that particular delay or is it the standard
to wait couple years after design is actually done?
(NOTE: Pause.)

MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, I believe that we had proposed it in fiscal year, construction
in Fiscal Year 2007. One because as you can see it's a pretty long project and
as we, when we begin the design phase we'll better to tell how complicated that
will be so that we can adjust the project into '06 if we feel we may be able to
move faster with that project. But as of now being that it's a pretty long project
that we would feel more comfortable leaving it in Fiscal Year 2007 and also with
the staffing problems we have.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Mateo, maybe you can help the Members where ... how we can
relate to hydrant 50 on Kamehameha V.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you, Chair. And I will ask the Department to
give us the specific locations, thank you, of hydrant 50.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department, can you give us one, uh ... an idea where this would
be regarding Kamehameha V and Kaunakakai Town.
MS. TAOMOTO: We can send a project map to you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
MS. TAOMOTO: You want me to describe it now?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: If you can.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, hydrant number 50 is along Ala Malama Drive and it's
between Koko Street and Kalohi Street. So it's along Ala Malama Drive and it is
halfway between Koko Street and Kalohi Street.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. As Mr. Mateo informed the Chair it is above the
existing County gym site. Thank you. Okay, next project, please.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the Kalae tank replacement is construction of 300,000
gallon concrete tank to replace an old 100,000 tank. This project involves the
moving ... the tank will be proposed mauka of the existing tank. The existing ...
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: It's not in '05, yeah, Mr. Chair.
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah, this is a '06 project. Sorry.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that's fine. Not a problem, Department.
through the booster pump, please, Department.

If you can get

MS. TAOMOTO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Eighty thousand dollars.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the Kamiloloa booster pump backup generator involves the
installation of a backup generator for the Kamiloloa booster pump. It will improve
reliability.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Mateo, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No questions on this one, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I need to ask you. I've always heard it called Kamililoa [sic}, but is
this correct, Kamiloloa?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Kamiloloa.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Anyone else has a question on this project? If
not, $400,000, Kaunakakai We" No.2.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this project involves the development of 700,000 gallons
per minute to develop ... to mitigate pumpage on Kualapuu we". It will distribute
withdrawals and it wi" mitigate Kualapuu we" withdrawals. It wi" also provide
backup source and improve reliability for the Kaunakakai-Kawela system.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chair. How long has this, has this particular
project for the Kaunakakai We" 2 been I guess around ... been open?
(NOTE: Pause.)

MS. TAOMOTO: Mister ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department, if you would, please.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the Kaunakakai We" 2 project is a, um, exploratory we"
and as I'm looking, the contract up ... (change tape) ... probably in 1995 with
R.M. Towill for the design of the exploratory we".
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I'm sorry, 1995?
MS. TAOMOTO: We", the project number is 95, uh ... oops. The project is number
95-09.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And they, you, obviously, the design phase wi" be
completed in FY 'OS, obviously, yeah?
MS. TAOMOTO: Um ... I spoke to the project engineering in charge of this project and
there are issues I guess that he has with this project and this project may not be
completed this fiscal year.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: The design component?
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MS. TAOMOTO: The ... design component.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And is there, you know, did he specify what those
specific issues were that might cause that delay?
MS. TAOMOTO: He's trying to secure a location ... land, land issues.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And once that, once that those issues are concerned
would the following '06, that 1.5 that would be satisfactory to deal with the issues
that are being raised at this point?
MS. TAOMOTO: That's what we are proposing and, um ... I believe that would be
sufficient.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Well, my only concern is we're already showing a
dollar value and we're ... up until now we know of additional concerns in the
actual design component of the project. So my, my concern would be that those
issues that are being raised now might increase the cost down the road when we
actually go in for construction of the project. I just didn't want the project getting,
getting delayed or pushed back because of, you know, for whatever reason, new
issues that are now surfacing.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, we WOUld, urn, be able to determine whether additional
funds will be needed but at a later time, but at this point we didn't feel we needed
to budget for it in the Fiscal Year '06. We'll handle that and might be back to
Council for: funding.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And lastly, since the design phase of it started in 1995,
what percent of it is completed?
(NOTE: Pause.)

MS. TAOMOTO: I'm not sure. I would need to get back to you on that.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. We will forward that request for information Mr.
Mateo. Can you inform the Committee if this project has anything to do with
meeting some of the requirements or conditions from State Water Resource
Commission regarding the designation of the Molokai water, watershed or
aquifer, please?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yes, it does.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Could you share a little bit more comment, please, Department?
MS. KRAFTSOW: The sustainable yield of the Kualapuu aquifer has been reduced
from the initial estimate of seven to five, and the County has an existing water
use permit which at times it exceeds and which it actually when they issued it
they said that the County could exceed the existing use permit because at the
time they issued it pumpage was already greater than the permit that they were
issuing. A future use permit was never granted and they have delayed action on
any future use permits until such time as we have a backup source.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So in a sense this is part of compliance then would you say,
Department? Okay, thank you. Just so that we can understand it better, at what
level does the Department consider Revolving Fund as a source versus other
types of funding for projects, please?
MS. KRAFTSOW: The State gives us a list of types of projects for which they would
consider issuing. Usually those are compliance but they, but there, um, they had
some problem with the second well for Molokai. I think that we did actually
submit an application for that one as well.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Okay, I just wondering 'cause, you know, we're looking at
approximately two million, yeah, to get this squared away so I'm just wondering
what was the Department's criteria for what would be requested for SRF funds
versus other Department sources.
MS. KRAFTSOW: We pretty much try to apply for anything that we think would be a
good candidate. I can get more detail on that particular project if you want.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Anything else on Kaunakakai? If not, let us please move to
Pano and Puili Place Subdivision - $340,000.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this project involves the installation of 2,300 feet of 8-inch
ductile iron pipe and three hydrants along Pano and Puili Place and
Kamehameha Highway. It would also replace approximately 33 service laterals,
improve fire protection, and replace the small substandard lines.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Mr. Mateo, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Can you tell us where Pano and Puili Place Subdivision
is?
(NOTE: Pause.)

MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, Pano and Puili Place is past Kaunakakai going east on
Kamehameha V Highway. It is mauka of the highway, um ... it's, um ... yeah,
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I'm not real familiar with the area. I been to Pano and Puili Place, but I can't give
you geographic landmarks, but it is a lot mauka of Kamehameha V Highway, urn,
a few miles past Kaunakakai.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Would you recall if this is right above Hotel Molokai or
just beyond Hotel Molokai?
(NOTE: Pause.)

MS. TAOMOTO: Beyond, I think, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. I have no questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Pontanilla.

I'm sorry.

Anyone else has a question on this project? Mr.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: On the 33 service laterals that need to be replaced,
urn, any of these laterals are going to be subject to the property owner's along
that route to relocate or reconnect their services?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the 33 service laterals to be replaced will be replaced at the
Department's expense. The consumers or the customers will have incurred no
costs.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: They will have internal cost?
MS. TAOMOTO: Will not have.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Oh, will not have.
MS. TAOMOTO: Will have no costs, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, fine, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Anyone else? I'm sorry. I just was reviewing the proposed budget
and staff did remind me that regarding Kaunakakai Well 2 it is the part of the
Department's restricted funds. So I believe that will come from this source
development account. Is that accurate Ms. Taomoto?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the ... if you can give us a minute.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
(NOTE: Pause.)
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Again, with this Department they have different accounts for different
uses and so again, we need to be aware what is from unrestricted funds, what is
from restricted funds, what is from borrowed monies ...
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, we think it is probably source funds at this time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Source development funds.
MS. TAOMOTO: Source development, yeah, restricted.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and this would be on the additional handout that
you had given us just with the detail description for the Pano and Puili Place
Subdivision. I see that under remarks it's got notice to proceed was issued 6/19
of 2000 and so I gather there was 39,987 that was released at that point in time.
Was that for the design?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, that 39,000 is a design contract with Marc Siah
Associates.

and

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay and that's, that was already put in during that
period of time and so has ... how long has this design been completed?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this design is in progress and is near completion. It doesn't
have all the, um, it requires the Department of Public Works approval and the
State Highway approval.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So I guess I'm not understanding that if they had a
notice to proceed in 6/19 of 2000 and now we're looking at the '05 budget, um,
why is this taking so long?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department, if you would please.
(NOTE: Pause.)

MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, I ... this project just took long because I believe it wasn't
funded for construction until this fiscal year and there were other priorities to get
other design projects completed for projects in ... proposed for construction with
our working budget. And so because we never got the funding for construction
until right now then we're gonna start finalizing the construction plans and be
ready for construction.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, so what you did was you encumbered somehow
the funds back in 2000, or--
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MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
working.

--you know, I just need to understand how this is

MS. TAOMOTO: Let me start from the beginning then. The design for a design
consultant was encumbered in 2000. That consultant is working on the
construction plans which requires approval from both the Department of Public
Works and the State Highway. We are still going through the design approval
process and because construction wasn't funded until we're looking at this
proposed fund Fiscal Year '05 this project had a low priority and so for that
reason the design was never finalized. And on top of that the construction plan
approvals for any construction plan for County highway lasts only a year. And so
if we had gotten the approvals in say '01 we would need to continue to resubmit it
every single year to update the approval. And so being that there wasn't any
construction funds available we, you know, purposely stretched it out until so we
can time it so that we don't need to go back and resubmit the construction plans
for approval.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And if I understand correctly what you're
saying that the money, you know, was just set aside because you knew you were
gonna have to do this. Because, I mean physically, I'm just looking at the
process of how you actually go through and you encumber monies, and the only
way that ... my understanding is when you encumber monies is when you issue
a contract and so if ... was this person actually paid this money back in 2000 or
did they get actually reimbursed upon completion of their project?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the Pano and Puili Place design consultant was paid a
portion of this money and to date we have an encumbered, um, we have
remaining 24,000 I think. I'm not sure about that number either but no, this is,
we've been paying him and he's more than 50 percent completed so I'm
assuming that we expended ... encumbered 39,000 and possibly expended
more than half of this to pay the consultant for his work. We're not, um, not
paying him.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, no, no. I just now understand how you're doing
this because usually what will end up happening is, you know, once the funds are
encumbered there's usually a more timely expenditure. But now I understand
why you kind of dragged this out or you asked him to drag this out because if he
had completed the work it would've been for not anyway because you would
have had to go and expend additional monies just to keep this thing alive. Thank
you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other questions with Pano and Puili Place? Okay. Seeing
none, let us move on to the Paia-Haiku region -- Kaupakalua well project.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the Kaupakalua well storage tank involves installation of a
500,000 gallon tank at the existing Kaupakalua well site. It will provide additional
storage and fire protection for Kuiaha, Kokomo, Peahi, and other downstream
customers. The proposed project is for both design and construction.
(NOTE: Pause.)

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, one million in '05 - 200 design, 800 construction. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chair. Is this ... I guess first of all
what is the design status? Is it nearly done, uh ... or is it still ... still got a long
way to go?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, if you read your project sheet the ... we have requested
200,000 for design of this project and 800,000 for construction so we propose to
do ... we haven't started on the design. This is the first time we're coming for
monies for this project.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Have you folks looked at other sources being that I
guess the emphasis is on additional fire protection? Any other grants or
resources available at this time to consider besides the County -- have you folks
looked into that area?
MS. KRAFTSOW: I guess for storage at this time no, there was ... at one point when
we discussed with some of, um, Senator's staff about a Countywide or a drought
program that would address storage needs throughout the Upcountry area, um,
and we took the next five or ten years of storage plans and submitted that but
nothing came of that. So we haven't gone for any official grant funding for that at
this time.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
questions of the Department on this project? Mr. Pontanilla.

Okay.

Other

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. When I see the design and the
construction being budgeted for '05, um, does that mean we're gonna complete
in '05 or can it be dragged down to '06?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the reason that this project is budgeted both for design and
construction in Fiscal Year '05 is because the district engineer who I think
requested this project felt it was a high priority. And that we would need to ...
we would be in a better position to have the construction monies available and
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work on this project as a high priority once the design was approved and hoped
to get it into construction urgently 'cause storage is needed in Upcountry.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So in this case we really don't know if we needed
an EA or an EIS to do this?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the Kaupakalua ... this proposed tank is at the existing
Kaupakalua well and tank. There's an existing well and tank there and, um, I
believe that the Environmental Assessment was done for the existing
infrastructure, which mentioned the construction of an additional storage.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Or future tank.
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah, future tank was already proposed when we did the first two.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Other questions regarding this project? Okay, let us move to the
Ulumalu Road project.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this Ulumalu Road waterline project from Five Corners to
standpipe 52 involves the installation of 700 feet of 12-inch ductile iron pipe,
three fire hydrants along Ulumalu Road and it will correct a bottleneck condition.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Again, for this project was there any Federal, State
funding resource considered? No? None, as well? Okay. Is this anywhere near
the I guess the repairs of Kaupakalua Road? Is this anywhere near that area
these proposed improvements?
MS. KRAFTSOW: It's, um, it's, it's further east further towards Ulumalu.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, any other questions on this project? If not, let us now look at
West Kuiaha Road project, $50,000.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this project involves the replacing of PR, pressure reducing
valve near standpipe 27 at the top of West Kuiaha Road below the intersection of
West Kuiaha Road and Kaupakalua Road. It is an 8-inch PRY installation. The
existing PRY, pressure reducing valve, is in need of replacement. The design
and construction is budgeted it says in one unit and will consider hydraulic
conditions on West Kuiaha during the design portion of this project.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other one has a question on West Kuiaha project? Okay. If not,
your subtotal for Paia-Haiku, Members, would be 1.1 million. That would be the
corrected subtotal for this region. Wailuku-Kahului.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MS. TAOMOTO: We need to make a correction. On the West Kuiaha Road PRV, uh,
it, there should not be appropriation Fiscal Year 2006 to 2010 of $50,000. That
should be $50,000 only in Fiscal Year 2005.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Okay.
Thank you for that, Department.
Let us move to
Wailuku-Kahului. Ainaloa, Lauala, Kopili, Kopiko improvements, 300,000.
MS. TAOMOTO: This project involves the installation of 1,800 feet of 8-inch pipe and
six hydrants. It will involve the replacement of approximately 41 service laterals,
it will improve fire protection and water service in the area and comply with
zoning. The project is, urn, there is a current design contract for this project.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMER KANE: Thank you, Chair. Because we have a current design
contract this project is ready to go come July or soon after? What's the status of
it actually starting construction?
MS. TAOMOTO: This project is going to be ready for ... not in July. It ... we're gonna
be pushing this project maybe more towards the end of the calendar year being
that we have an 18 year ... 18-month budget for the other pipe projects.
COUNCLMEMBER KANE: So start time end of calendar year. Do you have
approximate project length to completion or estimated time of completion starting
from the end of the calendar year this year?
MS. TAOMOTO: At the top of my head I would hate to guess, but if you want a number
it might be approximately 300 calendar days-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: --construction period.
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COUNCLIMEMBER KANE: Okay, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department, before I entertain anyone else, you have complied with
zoning and I don't know if there is additional language under operating impact.
Do you have, can you give us a comment regarding ...
MS. KRAFTSOW: I'm sorry. If memory serves that's a rural zoned area, a residential
area and the existing fire protection at the time this was put in and even still with
the 2-inch segments is ... was inadequate for that zoning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So the Department is just fulfilling its need to get the
standards up for a higher use zoning category that was given years earlier,
Ellen? Okay, was this part of the conditions of the zoning request? Would you,
can you recall?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Um ... I'm sorry. I can't recall, but I can tell you that there are many
areas that were rezoned in such a way that now the system is substandard.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would assume this was part of the old, under the old interim and
then got reclassified under some kind of zoning ordinance and that's part of the
situation.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Possibly if this, this is just memory now and my memory's not so
great anymore, but it seems to me like even years ago when we were, before we
had GIS and we were drawing the zoning in by hand that area popped out as
some place that was substandard.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Are there questions? One second, please. Mr.
Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: In this case here it would be the same as far as the
no cost to the consumers on the service lateral, Chair?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, that is correct. We would be replacing all existing customer
service laterals with new laterals that meet our standards at the Department's
cost.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: That was the question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Anyone else regarding this specific project -300,000? Okay, let us move to Central Maui raw water.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And I apologize. You know for the anticipated life of the
Ainaloa track 50 years .... this is based on the equipment that's gonna be used
or the, uh, what's gonna be put in? That's not to talk about what we have there
existing as far as time, uh, or life span of, of the material.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the anticipated life on the project sheet is the new
installation on the ductile iron pipe based on ductile iron pipe being installed.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So it is ductile iron pipe, yeah, okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Department, Central Maui raw water storage.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this project is for a study to identify al)ld acquire a site for a
large scale Central Maui raw water storage to provide drought backup for surface
water sources. It will improve reliability for Central Maui customers. It...
increased, increased reliance on surface water necessitates larger, raw water
storage reservoir for Central MauL
(NOTE: Pause.)

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. Can one assume that this was initiated
at the onset of designation? Mr. Director?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Was there any discussion of this type prior to designation
in July of '03 that you can recall, Mr. Director?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I don't recall any, uh ... discussion prior to that although
there might have been because we had already started with the lao water
treatment plant so it would be logical to look beyond the lao treatment plant and
look for a bigger plant in the Central Maui area.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Is there an idea or a calculation already done or is the
study going to determine the actual size in terms of gallons for this particular
storage facility?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I believe that would be part of the study that will be done.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay, okay. Chair, I yield.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Can you give me a definition of raw water storage?
MR. TENGAN: Basically raw water is untreated water something that it would, uh, you
know, you would get out of a stream or a ditch, uh, untreated water.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Untreated water.
MR. TENGAN: Right. Not potable water.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. The only question I have is the, the study in
regards to an EIS if, uh, you know, it's gonna take us one year just to do that or
are we looking longer than a year?
MR. TENGAN: It appears the way we're doing the budget as it's noted down there, uh,
for the study to start in '05 and the EIS to start in '06, but the $400,000 should
cover ... or maybe not, uh, maybe the EIS might cost a million dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Might cost a million.
MR. TENGAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, and why the gap, uh, you know, start off with
207, uh, six and half a million dollars and you don't show any dollars for '06 and
then $50 million I guess to complete the total project ... oh, I'm sorry, uh, those
are design and land acquisition, uh ...
MS. KRAFTSOW: Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MS. KRAFTSOW: There's some study that you do even preparatory to even starting to
draft an EIS that involves broad issues of siting feasibility, right. And then you go
to the EIS which is in '06 for about a million dollars that will cover broader issues
of desirability and public input and all of that, and then in '07 we're looking at land
acquisition and design. Basically, you don't design it until you know where you're
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gonna put it and acquire the site and then, um, we leave two years because
that's also a complicated process and then construct in '09. So that's how long it
takes to get a project like that going, and I would say if anything that's on the
ambitious side.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, anyone else has questions on this, this project? Department,
the potential of $4 million for land acquisition, uh, can you give us a better
understanding of the scope of what type of land acquisition are we looking at?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, that would probably cover the cost of the land in the Waihee
area or maybe even in the Wailuku area. Once the site's determined then we
can develop more accurate figures, but that's what we're looking at for the year
2007 right now.
CHAIR HOKAMA: When we talk about storage, uh, is it in the traditional sense just
large reservoirs is that what we're looking at or are we looking at other types of
storage capabilities?
MR. TENGAN: Basically we're looking at a structure or structures similar to our
Kahakapau reservoirs where we have two 50 million gallon reservoirs.
CHAIR HOKAMA: About how much space is that taking up, please, Director?
Approximate is fine. Is that something like-MR. TENGAN: In my mind I can ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --30 acres?
MR. TENGAN: No, I can visualize the Kahakapau reservoir. I would think they cover a
space of about 10 acres.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Expensive land.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, we will be expecting adjustments to the numbers as they
get more detailed information back from their assessments and other required
studies. Okay, let us move on, Members, now to the-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, I'm sorry.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Kane.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Reservoirs is not considered a source, yeah, Mr. Director?
And I only ask that because in this description page it seems like you're
referencing it as, as for operating impact to improve the operation of source
options. So it's almost as if you're implying that this reservoir or reservoirs are
gonna be considered a source of water. Mr. Chair, to the Department.
MS. KRAFTSOW: When you're using surface water sources, uh, you vastly improve
the reliability and usefulness of those sources by having adequate raw water
storage. You cannot rely on surface water sources unless you have adequate
storage, and so although it is not really source, it's kind of firming non-firm source
so it is, uh, could be considered a source project.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay, just for clarity what you just firming non-firm source.
Okay. No, and I understand what you're saying. I just wanted to get clarity that
you folks were clear on what you're implying in this description, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. As far as the funding have we ... or
are we able to get Federal funding or State Revolving Funding to do this project
or grants?
MS. KRAFTSOW: We would be hopeful and try I think to get Federal funding. State
Revolving Loan Fund might be more complicated just based on the way that
DOH prioritizes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Is this project tied to the completion of one of your
treatment plant projects? Is that for your lao or Central Maui?
MR. TENGAN: Yes, Mr. Chair. This project would be tied into the larger treatment
plant that we're looking or considering right now whether it's built by the County
or by, uh, a developer and turned over to the County for operation and
maintenance. I would think, you know, for the County to purchase the plant,
uh . .. so this would be the longer range treatment plant that we're talking,
looking at rather than, uh, a plant similar to what we have up at the lao tank.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so none of the other projects in the district for this year's
request, the treatment, uh, treatment plant projects is for, is, is, uh, part of the
earlier phasing for this raw water storage project?
MR. TENGAN: No, the ...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Because you got treatment plant for Central Maui, you have,
uh ... where is that other treatment plant?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Transmission, yeah, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm sorry, I'm just, I'm just wondering, Department, that if you can
help us when there's tie ins to other projects to please let us know so we can
understand.
MR. TENGAN: I'm sorry, Mr. Chair, but the related project would be on 25-61.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. We'll get to that shortly. Anything else under this one,
Members, Central Maui raw water storage? You will notice that the anticipated
project is about $23 million. Mr. Nishiki.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: What is that storage capacity? You mentioned Kahakapau?
What is that capacity that this punawai has? How much water can it store?
MR. TENGAN: The reservoirs that, uh, Kahakapau can store 100 million gallons of
water. They're in two 50, uh, 50 million gallon reservoirs. I'm not sure as to what
size this would be. That's something that would be determined in the study
based upon the dependability of flow of water at the source.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Anyone else? Mr. Kane.
COUNCLIMEMBER KANE: What is for Kahakapau and then tying into this future one?
Kahakapau is hundred million. And what is the daily usage of customer or, or
people who are on line at Kahakapau in the event of drought, how long that
hundred million gallons last?
MR. TENGAN: Uh, Mr. Chair, we use about 1.5 million gallons of water out of the
Kahakapau reservoirs. So if you divide that into hundred million, uh, what would
that give us, something less than 60 days storage.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So for Wailuku assuming that the demand connects all the
way down to Makena including Kahului, Wailuku, and Kihei, so we would
probably be looking ... and Mr. Director, I mean, if you can just talk plainly, we're
talking about something bigger than hundred million gallons for it to be feasible,
correct?
MR. TENGAN:
Not necessarily because this would be a supplemental to our
groundwater sources.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And would the intent be to decrease the pumpage of the
groundwater source?
MR. TENGAN: It would be to at least maintain our current pumping or stay below that.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Until such time they determine what is I guess or get a
better idea of carrying capacity of the aquifer?
MR. TENGAN: Yes and, uh, this will give us some flexibility in the management of the
water systems when, when water, surface water is available such as right now
when we have heavy flows in the streams and in the, you know, ditches,
depending on how much we can negotiate for. But assuming that, you know, the
heavy flows would be available to us then we can operate the surface water
plants and cut down on the pumping during the wet months and in the drier
periods then we can rely more on our pumping.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And I guess, Mr. Chair, that would tie in and I guess we'll
get to that part, but dealing with lead and copper rule and anticipating down the
road potential for us having to deal with that on this side as well and hopefully
trying to avoid that. I don't know if there's any discussion, if it's premature now
but at some point that needs to be discussed and hopefully that study, the study
will be, uh, getting into some detail into the discussion of having to put additives
into the water because it's surface water. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Anyone else on this specific project? If not, let us look
at the Central Maui source development, $200,000.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the transmission ... this project is a transmission from the
treatment plant that was just proposed to the Central Maui water system. It is to
do a study design, land acquisition, and environmental processing for
transmission route necessary to connect the treatment plant to the Central Maui
system. It will mitigate lao and Waihee aquifer withdrawals by utilizing already
flowing surface sources. It will improve source and reliability for Central Maui
customers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Before I entertain questions from the Committee, can you share with
us one ... is this and the next project part of the overall program and if such, uh,
why isn't it combined or you need to tell us why you chose to break it up and do it
separately if this is part of a comprehensive plan to address Central Maui?
(NOTE: Pause.)

MS. KRAFTSOW: Uh ...

-77 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 12, 2004

CHAIR HOKAMA:
impacts.

I mean except for a few words it's almost exact justification and

MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah, um ... well, uh, a few things. One is, um, in the CIP
database everything is broken out by its own project classification as well as its
own program, and so transmission would go under transmission and source
would go under source and storage would go under storage, uh, and treatment
would go under treatment. Just in the database they would generate separate
projects, that's one thing. And the other thing is we look comprehensively at
okay, um, we would put a treatment plant here. We wouldn't, the demand
wouldn't be great enough to require such large storage as we anticipate needing
right away, but we need to start planning right away to get it and so we
scheduled all that together, but it does generate separate projects in the CIP. I'm
not sure if that answers your question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I can understand how it makes it easier for the Department to
oversee the project, but as funding source people I would rather that we be told
we're looking at Central Maui source development for treatment and transmission
regarding the treatment plant at approximately $13 plus million is what you're
asking us to commit to. If we're gonna start, please look at what it takes to finish,
Members, and this is part of the Central Maui program that addresses the
concerns we have ... (change tape) ... others in the community. So both
projects we can assume then is simultaneous, they must go together. Both are
being planned for design in the same year. Both are being planned for
construction in the same year. Is that a reasonable assumption on our part?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I would think that the first part of the project we would wanna
complete would be the treatment plant. Once the treatment plant is up then we
can, you know, start running it and connect it to our system provided that the
treatment plant is close to the system. As far as the transmission line and the
storage, they could come later, and I believe we do have it scheduled later.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, well, maybe, Mr. Mateo, it might help maybe out of budget
your committee consider discussing this because if you look at storage treatment
plant and the transmission line we're looking at 35 to $40 million for the request,
and that's a reasonable size commitment on the part of the County. So maybe
your committee can assist by the time we get back to budget next year. Mr.
Kane, questions on this projects? I'll take the two at the same time, Members, in
case whether it be for the transmission, 200,000 or the treatment plant, 700.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chairman, there's mention in both descriptions and
justifications of 25-60 and 25-61 about land acquisition, excuse me, not in 25-61.
In 25-60, land acquisition and yet nothing is labeled down in the dollar area. Has
there, has there been any discussion and any preliminary figures about what's
gonna be needed for land acquisition and dollar amounts? And again, it's not
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there so I'm just wondering if there has been since it's mentioned in your
description.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department, if you would, please.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, uh, yeah, I guess we need to include an amount for land
acquisition also. That's something that's been omitted.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, what we'll do is ask that you submit that in writing and we can
make the adjustments and then the Committee can question the response from
the Department if that's fine with the Members. One second, please. Mr. Kane
that was your question?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, and then, Mr. Chair, as you stated earlier it seems
like the raw storage, uh, raw water storage as well as transmission as well as
source development from this treatment plant all going tie in to pretty much one
mega project that's gonna be completed around '09, '10 looks like the way they
have it set up. Between eight ... Fiscal Year '08 and '09 finishing up a little later
than that and as you stated that's almost $35 million. So I'm ... you know this is
one of 'em that as a body we need to go, we need to go into with our eyes wide
open, wide open and decide whether or not this is something, uh ... you know if
we wanna start going down this road, and perhaps it'll be good for us to at least
get into the first portion or the first steps of it of providing the studies and look into
what we're anticipating, projected growth trends, if we wanna accommodate
those type of growth trends, if we wanna hold back on the reins. Anyway, so, Mr.
Chair, I don't have specific ... I mean, these two, this one treatment plant is long
term big stuff and so I'd be more interested to start seeing more specific
discussion on what projections they have to come up with these numbers and
what they're trying to anticipate as far as anticipated growth and tying into our
planning and our general plan so it's just more comment rather than specific
questions on these two items. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Nishiki.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: Yeah ... and in regards to this I think that before we start
looking at putting money out, I would hope that this Department would look at
legal ramifications and I don't want to start putting money out and banking on
something until they've looked at past or present legal concerns raised I think in
our last discussion with some of the legal interest that have or may have concern
about this kind of water grandeur plans I guess. And I don't want to be caught
again planning for something and not addressing as we did on the East Maui with
a major EIS. So I would hope that this Department look at consultation with our
Corporation Counsel. They probably have some idea on how they're going to
draw that water -- where it's coming from.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: I would think maybe, hopefully, part of the study would be
specifically written to address that as well as, uh, again, having our subject
committee and it's chairman consider those type of areas to discuss in Water
Resource Committee. Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Anyone else has a question regarding anyone of the two projects
for Central Maui source either the transmission or the treatment plant? Ms.
Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wondered if we had any feedback because of
the fact that lao's designated and because we also are looking at trying to relieve
some of the pressure on the existing resource to avoid over pumping. Have we
gotten any feedback or direction from the State on this as to what route to go?
MS. KRAFTSOW: On these projects?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MS. KRAFTSOW: No, just, just that they hope that we'll be discussing these options
during the Water Use and Development plan process that we're commencing.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
Okay.
And then as far as the State Water
Commission they're just looking for what we're doing to try to protect the
resource and they're not really assisting with the development of any of these
particular plans?
MS. KRAFTSOW: With the plans they will assist with their expertise as they can and
we've requested them to provide us with certain data and help us get some data.
I think that they will, also occasionally, will drill some exploratory test wells. So
they'll assist in those ways, but as far as this goes I mean this is a County call for
the kinds of demands that we're anticipating if it, uh, if the existing growth trends
or project build outs went through the only way that we can meet these kind of
demands would be either East Maui water, surface water or possibly desalt. So
... and that's basically if the growth trends are gonna continue as they are those
are what you're looking at.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, we're not looking at any partnerships in regard
to this particular storage, you know, in terms of public-private or ...
MS. KRAFTSOW: I think that right now, um, that question is open. I think we WOUld, if
there are multiple projects that need to develop source and storage in order to
meet the kinds of demands that they anticipate generating we would expect them
to contribute.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Members, the Chair is gonna have us take a short
five minute break and then I would hope we can finish this up prior to the
adjournment this afternoon, Members. So we'll take a short recess, three
0' clock. . .. (gavel) ...
RECESS:

3:00 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:07 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA: .. .(gavel) . .. Meeting back to order. Okay, Members, as I stated
earlier regarding those three major projects, uh, the reason why I continually ask
if Mr. Mateo can either take it up or has been ... if he's had discussion is that it's
hard to expect Council to make a decision or have Council provide an
expectation to fund if, uh, either through our subject matter committee or as a
body we have not been engaged to a plan to address the lao aquifer and how we
plan to address demand and existing improvements to the pumping
requirements. And again, I guess we'll take it a step at a time, but it was part of
the Chair's intention of why subject matter committees prior to budget will engage
the departments to show that at least from our side as well as doing our part of
being that the check and balance of government on· our side, uh, where the
people continually ask us what are we doing, why haven't we done certain things,
what are we doing, again, we can show it from our side that we are trying to
engage the Administration in discussion and to show our part that we have been
willing to initiate it even at times, uh, some of the committees may express a
sense of frustration. Let us move on to lao source development, lao tank,
$150,000.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this project involves the development of a well in the lao
aquifer at the existing lao tank site. It will improve distribution of the aquifer
withdrawals from lao.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members, this is 25-63. Can you give us a status of the
earlier $700,000? Is that encumbered, still available for use, has been used, uh,
for design the original 100,000, and is the 600,000 this current year and it's
gonna be encumbered prior to the completion of design from this year's request?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the, urn ... first of all, the 600,000 is budgeted for the
Fiscal Year 2004, our current fiscal year, and we haven't encumbered that
money yet and that was for exploratory well drilling construction phase. The
100,000 that you see under the design and prior appropriation is for an existing
design contract that is encumbered and probably more than 50 percent
expended.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. This 150,000 for this year's request is to accomplish what,
please?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this 150,000 for design in the Fiscal Year 2005 is for a, um,
design consultant to prepare construction plans for the development phase of
this well. Let me explain. Once the exploratory drilling phase is completed and a
well is drilled and tested and we determine the yield, from that point we, um,
procure another design contract to do the design and construction plans for a
installation of a well pump, permanent well pump.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Is there any way that your exploratory design can just be
expanded to incorporate a full development well requirements, or do you need to
basically start all over and do a second independent contract?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the reason that we make it two separate projects and two
separate encumbrances is because if for whatever reason the ... during the
exploratory drilling of phase there's a testing of the well that doesn't produce
yields that is to our satisfaction for to, uh, spend money for a production or
installation of a permanent pump, then we would not pursue a design contract or
need a design contract for the development of the well. And for that reason we
break it out, the design intc;> two separate contracts.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Under that scenario, Department, I can fully appreciate your
comments and I would consider that a good practice, but on the other hand when
your exploratory well pans out to be the appropriate developmental well site also,
then wouldn't you put a rider in your first contract that says if things do plan and
work out accordingly that we can now renegotiate and expand this original scope
and include now a development. I ... and again, you know, I come from frontline
operations and I just ask this things from a private sector person make sense to
me. And again, we're learning about your department and we're just asking the
questions that will assist us. So that has not been done in the past where a rider
of a developmental exploratory program can then be expanded for a full
development project, well project?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, I believe in the past that question came up, um, for the
Waikapu well and ... it, in order to do a rider we would need to encumber the
funds. I believe that was the advice we got from Corporation Counsel, and the
only way we would be able to do that is to specify that we are, when we procure
in the first phase that we would specify that we're procuring a design contract for
design of an exploratory well and the development of a well and encumber those
funds. We tried this I think with Corporation Counsel, um, this question and if I
can defer to Traci.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Corporation Counsel, if you can, do you have any comments?
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MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'm aware of in the past with other
departments that they've done phased projects where the project would be
broken up into different phases and typically they go, you know, beyond one
fiscal year, and when the bids go out, the contractors or professional service
providers would bid on the different phases, but then the department maybe only
contracts for one phase at a time and then the next year maybe add another
phase, expand the scope, you know, have additional compensation. That ...
I've seen that been done in the past.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Okay, thank you.
Questions regarding lao tank site well
development, Members? Mr. Nishiki.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: Was this done prior to designation?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, yes, this project was planned prior to designation.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: And have we now assessed this project to see if we ... let me
ask you this. Has any EA or EIS been done on this project?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the EA or EIS has been done on this project. I believe so.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: And legally now with designation does this change anything as
far as what the EA or EIS has stated?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this well project is to distribute the pumping of the wells in
the lao aquifer and will not increase withdrawals. So I don't believe ...
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: Let me ask you this. Has the State Water Commission given
you any statement in regards to this ongoing project now that it's been
designated?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, if I may?
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: And if you have any kind of written legal documentation.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department.
MR. TENGAN: I don't know what would be considered legal written documentation, but
the subject of spreading the pumping came up in the '90s when I believe it was
about '97 or so when we were first threatened with designation, and one of the
things that the State Water Commission was suggesting at that point in time was
that we spread the pumping over the aquifer and so this is the result of that
- 83-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 12, 2004

comment by the State Water Commission.
pumping.

This is a project to spread the

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: Yeah, I understand all of that. I think all of us do. It's just a real
good thing to communicate with them in lieu of designation and this project going
on, do you have any comments, I think would be an appropriate letter to write to
them on the continuation of this. That's all I'm asking. I'm not telling you what to
do. I'm just taking into consideration just the legal concerns and that we don't
continue to waste good taxpayers money without you doing your job.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I'd like to thank Mr. Nishiki for his comments.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Any other questions on this specific project? Fifty
thousand dollars, lao intake line upgrade.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this project involves installation of 1,700 feet of 12-inch
ductile iron pipe from the Hawaii Nature Center to the UV, ultraviolet plant.
Replacement, replace old line in need of an upgrade, existing line is old and
transite and is in poor repair. It's a high priority for our baseyard.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, questions? Any questions on this project, Members? Ms.
Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You know once again it's the difference I guess in
looking at 12-inch transmission line versus the 8-inch and the 10-inch. And I
guess my question is that in this area there's not a huge amount at least from
what I'm aware of massive amount of urban development. I mean there's some
housing but not maybe as much as some of the other areas. So why are we
going with the 12-inch as opposed to, you know, leaving it at the ... well, I guess
at the 10-inch? Is it for fire flow?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Mr. Chair, that's because this is right very close to the source itself
where the most flow of water is and so you would size it to accommodate the
entire systems needs for transmission through that area.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, so that's why we're going with the 12-inch in this
particular situation. And just as a general rule, I notice some here they're saying
that there's a certain type of material the ductile iron line. In your abbreviations in
the other one is it all duc ... when it says DI that's all ductile iron?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
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MS. KRAFTSOW: I have to apologize. The database we use has a limited number of
characters you can put in that field so we abbreviate a lot.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, so that the materials that you're using to
replace then is consistent. That's all that ... when I see 01 it's not 01 it's 01. All
right, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Any other questions on this project? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. As far as the replacement of the
existing line, uh, is the existing line giving us some problem in regards to leaks,
major leaks?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Um, Mr. Chair, yes. The field has made this one of their top
priorities for replacement because they were having maintenance problems with
it.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So most of the lines that are being replaced, I'm
just assuming that most of them are giving us problems in regards to leaks?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Mr. Chair, many of them are prioritized because they either are
giving us problems with leaks or have historically had leaks. Others are
prioritized because they are very old and substandard and probably it's only a
matter of time.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Anyone else? Kaohu Street improvements.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this projects involves the installation of 950 feet of 8-inch
ductile iron pipe to replace existing 8-inch cast iron pipe on Kaohu Street
between Market Street and Waiale Drive. This project reduces losses due to
frequent breaks. It maintains the system and improves fire protection.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 30,000 this year for design. What is your major cause of
breaks? Can we ask?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this, um, waterline, existing waterline is shallow and it
crosses over Spreckles ditch and at that location we have less than one foot of
cover and it is also very old.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So this is between lao School and Kaohu Store and the Public
Works baseyard area.

- 85-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 12, 2004

MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this project extends from the top of the new lao School
Armory that was renovated down Kaohu Street to Waiale Drive where the
baseyard is.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Johnson.

Okay, thank you. Questions, Members, on this project?

Ms.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The only one I just wanna find out which one is the
accurate one or more accurate in the project description on the more detailed
handout we got 1,300 feet and then on the description in the other 25-05 you got
950 feet and then one says you're gonna replace a hydrant at Napua and the
other one doesn't mention that. So can you just clarify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the more accurate project description is on the project
sheet, install 950 feet of 8-inch between Market Street and Waiale Drive.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay and then I'm assuming that some of the other
work was already done as a part of the school project. Is that correct?
MS. TAOMOTO: I believe that's what we're ... she's, Ellen is telling me that the upper
portion between Napua and Market Street was previously done.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, thank you.
MS. TAOMOTO: We're not sure about that, but we think so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Any other questions on this $30,000 request?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAI R HOKAMA: Mr. Kane.
COUNCLlMEBMER KANE: Because of the size of the project it still gonna need that,
that one year break in '06? Is this one of 'em ... let me rephrase the question.
Is this one of 'em that possibly can be moved up into '06 as far as final
construction because of the size of the overall project?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, yeah, this project may be able to move up into '06 and
when we come back to Council for our '06 budget we would at that time would
be, be better to assess the progress of the deSign.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mill Street project, $180,000.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the Mill Street project involves the installation of 950 feet of
12-inch ductile iron pipe and two fire hydrants along Mill Street between Market
Street and Central, uh, involves the relocation of approximately 10 service
laterals. This project will improve domestic service and fire protection and is also
a commercial area. The existing 4-inch line is in need of replacement. We are
trying to coordinate this project with the Wailuku Town Redevelopment Project,
which is a Public Works project.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Has the redevelopmental agency reviewed this project and given
any comments that this Committee might be, uh, needs to be informed of?
MS. TAOMOTO: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, I just ask that since this is within my understanding of the
redevelopment agency area of responsibility.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Mr. Chair, this was one of the projects that they listed as a priority
that they would like us to do in conjunction with them, but we haven't spoken to
them recently.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for those comments. I would ask if, uh, we shall send a
written request to the MRA requesting if they have any comments of projects
within their area of responsibility. If there's any comments that could assist the
Committee in making a decision we would appreciate and you can give them a
reasonable time to respond, please. Okay, any other questions, Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Only just to find out because this is a joint project
that's being undertaken by Public Works, is the figure that's been listed as the
180,000 is that taking into account the fact that they were already going to be
doing some excavation in that area, or is it just a stand alone figure irrespective
of what Public Works would already be doing?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, I believe we, it may not be as typical, when we say we're
coordinating with the Public Works Department it is not determined at this time if
we're gonna do a single construction contract but this, so this figure, 180,000, is
a stand alone figure in the event we would have to do it on our own.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I would just, you know, if there's any way that
we can and particularly on collaborative projects such as this where even if it's a
different contractor doing it, as long as the excavation, you know, occurs or the
earth has opened up or the roadways opened up at the same time, if one
contractor can do their work then I think that would certainly ... if you're going
out for a contract on this, uh, I would put something in the contract under the
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request for proposal that would allow for that possibility to at least not have them
force a change order or something else, you know, where you're including in that
some kind of flexibility. Because I don't write contracts I don't know if that's even
possible, but at least don't close the door on your being able to economize in that
respect.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comment. We are aware that Public Works
needs to do some subsurface wastewater improvement so I would say your
question is very timely, Ms. Johnson. Any other questions on this project? Mr.
Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Just briefly. It's unfortunate that this road just recently got
repaved. So now we're gonna go dig it up after we repaved this whole road all
the way down. So, hopefully, in the future the coordination can involve a
resurfacing effort. That's my comment, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that comment. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chair. Just so I can understand the design is
complete?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the design for this project we are in the process of
negotiating a design contract for this project so the design has not, uh, funds has
not been even encumbered as of today.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Any other questions regarding this project? Seeing
none, let us move to North Waihee - Camp Maluhia project, $1.5 million.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this project involves the installation of a deep well pump,
motor controls, site piping, telemetry, and other appurtenances needed for the
This well will improve distribution of
development of the MaJuhia well.
withdrawals, increase reliability and availability of water for the Central Maui
system.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So as we can understand it from the earlier appropriations we are
now moving from an exploratory to a developmental project. Is that correct?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, that is correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Again, as Members have asked, is this project initiated prior to
designation of the aquifer?
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MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, yes, this project was initiated prior to the designation of the
aquifer.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Questions? Mr. Kane.
COUNCLIMEMBER KANE: Thank you. And just for the benefit of the Committee, this
particular well is in North Waihee which means it's north of Makamakaole gulch?
And, again, just for clarity.
MS. TAOMOTO: Yes, that is correct.
COUNCLIMEMBER KANE: So this ... and that's where it says increase availability of
water since currently the discussion has been revolved, uh, revolved around
south, South Waihee and the capacity I think Mr. Nishiki has been talking about
as far as the four million gallons. So this is ... is there an amount that you folks
have, uh ... have come up with as far as what this site's gonna be, uh, the
projected pumpage from this site?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, at this time the capacity of this well is unknown until we do
our exploratory well drilling and testing.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay, so nothing anticipated. Okay, thank you. I'm sorry,
Mr. Chair, one other one.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So because we've had previous discussions about
transmission once, I mean we have the well site, and then we have the issue of
transmission to the Central Maui water system, is there something connected to
this talking about ... that's the next page. Okay, thank you. I'm done, Chair. It
ties into the next one for transmitting that ...
CHAI R HOKAMA: I was just gonna say, Members, that you need to look this in
conjunction with the funds for a transmission line between Camp Maluhia to the
system which is a $100,000 design request on the following page.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
And we're anticipating construction cost for the
transmission once we figure out the exploratory results?
CHAIR HOKAMA: They will need to report back on every single project that does not
have all of the requirements that this Committee needs to make a decision.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. I'm done.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We'll go down the line. There's some discussion I really
know you're gonna like. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Is this the well that the State right now has the funding
in limbo for, you know, the exploratory well at Waihee?
MR. TENGAN: No, Mr. Chair, this is a well that's independent of that well that Member
Johnson is referring to.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So it's not the same one.
MR. TENGAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: All right, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chair. The 800,000 and the one for
exploratory drilling and the design, 150,000, any of that already spent?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, none of that has been spent yet.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So monies already encumbered?
MR. TENGAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Nishiki.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: Yeah, without raising my voice I just wanna communicate that
we apprise the State Water Commission of our plans and ask them if they have
any concerns, Mr. Chairman.
CHAI R HOKAMA: You want that from ...
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: And I don't know if you're going to-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Nishiki.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: --you're to discuss this and ...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: You want that from this Committee to the Water Commission?
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: I think it would probably be better.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We can do that if that's the request. The Chair has no objections to
forwarding that request from you. That will be done.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Any other questions regarding this project or the source
improvement project? Okay, seeing none, let us move onto Papohaku waterline
replacement project for 40.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this project involves the installation of 2,500 feet of 8-inch
ductile iron pipe, six fire hydrants and replacement of 47 service laterals. This
project will replace substandard lines, maintain the system and improve fire
protection for the area.
CHAIR HOKAMA: For those of us not generally familiar with the area, Department,
could you give us some other landmarks or description, please.
MS. TAOMOTO: Yes, Mr. Chair. This project is along Lower Main Street, uh, going
along Lower Main Street. These, um, Momi Lane is ... is between Lower Main
Street and Eha Street and it is coming from our County Building the main, the
first, the second main intersection is the Waena Street which is where the
Wailuku Community Center is. You pass that and it is the fourth street on the
left, and the next Mamo Lane is the fifth street.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So that would be somewhere close to Maui Soda area, Standard
Furniture area ...
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, it looks like the area across from Home Maid Bakery.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much, Department. Okay, yeah, I know that
area ... questions, anyone? Okay, this is for construction, Department. So
again, we can assume that your design requirements have been addressed.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, the project is currently in its design phase and if this is
approved we'll have our design completed for the construction phase in Fiscal
Year '05.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Piihana Road project, 50,000, design this year.
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MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this project involves the replacement of 1,850 feet of
existing 4-inch pipe with 8-inch ductile iron pipe and extends from standpipe 275
on Piihana Road to our existing 6-inch pipe, and it also involves the replacement
of two standpipes with fire hydrants and it also involves the installation of an
additional fire hydrant. The existing waterline is severely deteriorated and it is a
field request.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, this would be from the old Kimura Store into the valley or is
this the opposite side of Piihana Road?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this is the makai side of Piihana Road, not the Kimura side.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so ...
MS. TAOMOTO: At the end.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So ... oh, at the end, the very end where the old cemetery
is, Piihana cemetery is and whatnot? That's okay. This is my family's
neighborhood so I know where it is. Thank you. Questions regarding this
project, Members? Okay, let us move to the replacement of Waihee Well #2 Pump 578.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this project involves the replacement of a pump as part of
our regular preventative maintenance. It will improve reliability for Central Maui
customers. The pipe was last replaced in 1985.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
schedule?

What is the Department's pump replacement program and

MS. KRAFTSOW: Mr. Chair, we have about 85 pipes and the life of a pump can vary
but for purposes of planning we figure about 15 years. And so we sat down with
the head of plant operations to review the inventory pumps and wrote down
everything we could find about the age of the pump and the last replacement and
put that into a database, and then went over what were the most urgent
replacements and we review it and update each year with the head of plant
operations.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. We are pleased to hear that. Any questions on this
project, Members? If not, let us move to the last district in this year's request
West Maui. Let us first take Kanaha intake project, $15,000.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this project involves the installation of a meter to monitor
water taken from the existing Kanaha intake. It will monitor the use of the
surface water in our Lahaina system. The previous meter is broken. It is also a
field request.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, questions, Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh, no ... how many intakes do we have all together
for West Maui?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Mr. Chair, we have the Mahinahina intake and the Kanaha intake.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, the intakes that's up, uh, I guess near
Lahainaluna which intake is that?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Mr. Chair, that would be Kanaha.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's the Kanaha and so because that has had a lot
of problems with collapsing and, you know, where the intake gets blocked when
we have a lot of the heavy rainfalls, uh ... is that, is the actual meter located
right at the ... (change tape) . .. located in another area.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Mr. Chair, the meter that we're actually requesting would be, um, to
meter the water would either be up at that facility or down immediately upstream
of the treatment facilities so that we could actually monitor what was being taken
out of the stream itself.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And there's no concern about recurring
damage to that area where the intake gets blocked all the time? 'Cause I know
the person that lives up there that monitors that all the time and it's just nothing
but problems.
MR. TENGAN: Yes, Mr. Chair, Member Johnson, it is a problem area for us whenever
we have heavy rainfalls and storms in the valley, but there's nothing much we
can do because of the steepness of that mountain side so when a heavy storm
comes it'll just send rocks and rubble down, down the mountainside and into the
intake and the only thing we can do right now is to go out, you know, when
weather conditions are favorable and to clean the intake and that's what we're
doing now.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, but this will ... this would then alert you that
let's say if the intake is blocked or if there's a problem that immediately you're
gonna know if there's a difficulty?
MR. TENGAN: Yes. We have a intake box or a splitter box up at, above the school. In
the past it used to send water to the plantation, to the school, and to our water
system. And obviously, you know, the first indication would be that, uh, you
know, that we have a problem up there is that no, no water would be coming into
that splitter box. So as Ellen was stating it's mainly to monitor and measure the
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amount of water that we're taking from the, the stream and not necessarily to
indicate whether we have a problem or not.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Other questions on this area, Members?
I would have
recommended that this be either a equipment or operational cost consideration
instead of a CIP consideration. Is, is there a reason why the Department would
request a $15,000 replacement as a CIP?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I would tend to agree with you that this would be more
reflective of an operational expenditure rather than a CIP expenditure, and with
the Budget Director's blessing we can make the appropriate changes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, thank you for your comment, Mr. Director. We will
make that adjustment. Let us go to Lahaina well site and source. Optimization
study is $100,000. This is on 27-28, members, $100,000.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this project is for a study to identify potential well sites in
Honolua and Honokohau aquifers and to address incremental source needs in
light of growing demand and sustainable yield questions. The 1992 Water Use
and Development Plan estimated five percent chance that the demand would
exceed sustainable yield in this area by 2010.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Johnson, questions on this?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh ... no. I just think it's good that they're doing the
study at least to find out where we stand.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, other questions by the Members? Have... has the
Department had a chance to look I believe, uh, Congressman Abercrombie had
shared some information about a study recently done on agricultural water and
for Maui was on the Pioneer Mill water system. Is there anything useful to the
Department that could address how that system could, could possibly use to
assist the Department's requirements for West Maui? And again, I know this
mostly surface water and I know you're dealing with subsurface sources right
now, but have you been made aware of this study?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Mr. Chair, I was aware that such a study might be going on, but I
have not yet seen it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, my office has some information. We are more than happy to
share that information with the Department for potential use.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Anyone else regarding this? Mr. Nishiki.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: What is the ... what did the '92 plan speak about when it
addressed these two aquifers?
MS. KRAFTSOW: The consultant at that time, Mr. Kumagai, ...
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: Who?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Mr. James Kumagai-VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: Kumagai.
MS. KRAFTSOW: --was the 1992 Water Use and Development Plan consultant. He
tried to do a sort of an updated water budget of stream flows and withdrawals
throughout the County and then he projected based on ... he did both a
regression on demand and a build out, and looking at build out and looking at
stream flows and intakes he, based on his statistics he came up with ... within
the 95 percent confidence interval he wasn't certain that we would be able to
meet build out demand. As it is now that comment has been in there ... it's a
study that has been put in the database for a long time. Probably would've been
better to update and my apologizes for not doing so to say that we know that
there are about 12 million gallons in discretionary projects that are either pending
or approved of which I believe about five are DWS projects, but the total Lahaina
source picture is going to be complex when we get to the Water Use and
Development Plan for that area. We would like to have some additional data
prepared. We'd like to go to these water advisory committees with more data
prepared upfront for them so they have some real decisions to make.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: Well, I wonder what that '92 development plan sustainable yield
figure was. Do you have that?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: What is it?
MS. KRAFTSOW: It's the same as in the State Water Resources Protection Plan and in
the-VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: What is?
MS. KRAFTSOW: --aquifer map. Honokowai was eight, um,-VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: Honokohau.
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MS. KRAFTSOW: --Honokohau is ten and, and the other one that begins . . .
Launiupoko is eight and then, um ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Honolua, if you can, please, Ellen.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Honolua is eight. And then I get always mixed up between
Ukumehame and Olowalu one is two and one is three.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: And if you know, what are we using right now in those specific
areas?
MS. KRAFTSOW: The sustainable yield figures haven't changed and the Department
of Water Supply in terms of, um, surface, uh, groundwater is using the order of
2 %. I believe, you know, I'm not gonna trust my memory here for Kaanapali and
Kapalua. I believe, um ... that the State Water Commission, the last time they
sent us the updates commented, and I don't know if this is Kaanapali or Kapalua
or somebody else, that they don't feel that they're getting adequate reporting
from the wells and those aquifers so I can't state with any confidence what the
withdrawals are.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Nishiki.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: I guess because of private we're not ... they don't have to
divulge.
CHAIR HOKAMA: They would report to the State Water Commission, but I don't
believe they are required to report to the Department. I may be wrong, but I'm
not sure. PUC controls regulatory, regulating those entities if it's for a public
purpose.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Mr. Chair, if pumpage is over a certain amount they're required to
report to the State Water Commission and I don't remember the exact trigger off
the top of my head, I'm sorry, but one amount would be monthly and another
amount would be annually, and the State reports to us that they don't feel that
they're getting adequate reporting on the use and so they cannot provide it to us.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: Then they couldn't even provide it to us either then if we were to
ask that question, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say we wouldn't know until we ask the question and get a
response to be fair.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: Yeah, I'd like to ask that question just for ...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: And who would you like us to address that question to, Mr. Nishiki?
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: Wouldn't it be the State Water Resources that would be ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I thought you might ... and again, I ask that for clarification 'cause
I'm not sure if you wanted the private water companies that are allowed to
withdraw to respond to that or not. We, we can request the Water Commission
for ...
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: You gotta ask both of 'em. I'm curious to see if ... that's fair.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Mr. Chair, I'm sorry, one more thing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MS. KRAFTSOW: They will give us whatever information they have. It's not that they
won't give it to us. I just wanted to clarify that is that they tell us when they give it
to us that they don't feel the information is necessarily complete.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We can forward that request nonetheless, Mr. Nishiki. Anything else
on this project?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Question for Ellen. You said that already we have
12 million gallons already planned?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Mr. Chair, when our, when we review in the Water Department
discretionary permits those are the one's that would go through the Planning
Commission, the changes and zoning, and community plan designation, and
project districts and those kinds of level permits. Our planners analyze ... each
planner is assigned to various districts and they each maintain a list of projects
that they've reviewed that are pending and based on a standard analysis or
some adaptation of a standard analysis in areas where we know empirically that
the water use diverges from standards. They maintain a list of anticipated water
use if all these projects were built out.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Twelve million gallons per day?
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MS. KRAFTSOW: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Ellen, when projects let's say like Kaanapali Ocean
Resorts, Maui Marriott with their expansion, come forward and they're going
forward with their SMA permits, when the Department comments or when you're
let's say contacted to provide any kind of information or data, can you insist at
that point that that information be provided to the Department in order for you to
make a comment?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Mr. Chair, we have been in recent period starting to request and we
have in the past ... I think in the distant past we didn't get as much response as
it seems that we'll be getting now, but we ... yes, we do request that that
information be provided to us as well. I'm not sure if those permits have gone
through yet. And also I should, I should add one other point of clarification that
because of the purpose for which we're keeping those list, which is to make sure
that we're aware of kind of, uh, not a worse case scenario but, uh ... we, you
know, those numbers are a little bit padded from what you would really expect.
Those are, um, to give us a, you know, you have to consider maximum day
demand and peak day demand and stuff so they're a little bit conservative.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And another question to with regard to, um, I know
Kaanapali Water Corporation has been having over the years had a tremendous
problem with their wells salting up and their salinity levels continuing to rise. Do
they report any kind of trends or anything to you or to the State as to what's
happening with the water quality?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Mr. Chair, I believe that they would be required as we are to report
pumpage and water levels and chlorides. Also, I believe that since that at least
near towards the Kanaha side of Lahaina where that big reservoir was, the wells
in that area have actually freshened since irrigation went out in park probably
because the water in that reservoir is, um, probably getting into the aquifer.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Anyone else on this project? If not page before 27-27,
$100,000 for water treatment plant improvements, the acid cleaning project.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this project involves the installation of an acid cleaning
system for micro-filtration units for clean-in-place operations. It will improve
efficiency of operations, reduce chemical use and cost, and also reduce labor
cost. With the existing clean-in place system the staff has to switch from caustic
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to acid cleaning regimens, neutralizing solutions in between. Chemicals which
could otherwise be reused have to be neutralized and disposed resulting in high
labor and chemical cost. This project is similar to the previous project for acid
cleaning that we, uh, at the Kamaole [sic] water treatment facility.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Any questions on this project, Members? Okay,
Mahinahina improvements, 50,000 emergency generator building.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this project involves the construction of a building to
enclose the emergency generator and it will be installed for proper maintenance
and protection of the plant facilities. The Mahinahina water treatment plant is in a
windy area and is subject to agricultural over spray from field 12, salt spray from
the ocean, and wind borne dirt particles.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, questions on this project, Members? Let us move to the
Mahinahina project for the screen for the intake ditch, 27-32, 200,000.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this project is for the installation of a traveling screen for the
intake at the ... for the ditch intake at the Mahinahina water treatment facility.
Safety is a concern for maintenance staff. This will mitigate the need for
dangerous maintenance operations, screen will also serve as a roughing filter to
help keep out and prevent damage from large debris. This, um ... 200,000 is
20,000 for design and $180,000 for construction.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, questions on this project, Members?
project Waipuka pump #560.

Seeing none, final

MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair, this project is the replace ... to replace a pump as part of
regular preventative maintenance. It will improve reliability for West Maui
customers. The pump was last replaced in 1993.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, you know the pumps better, but Waihee Pump #2 is
double the price. Just tell us ... we're looking at different size gpms, what are
we looking at, please?
MS. TAOMOTO: This would be a smaller pump.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, maybe we can work with the Department, Mr. Director, and
see ... I don't know. Lance, do you have any comments on the GASB-34, what
is if any, is the dollar sign between normal part replacement and what would
become a regular CIP consideration.
MR. TAGUCHI: Thank you, Chair Hokama. I think in the area of pump replacement
since we're doing quite a bit of pump replacements the questions are more likely
in the range of does this pump replacement is considered an ongoing
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maintenance issue, or is it a upgrade to a larger pump, uh ... is also useful lives
to the extent of which it is extended. So I would believe that for accounting
purposes in terms of placing these things to be depreciated, my guess is that it
would have to be placed on a equipment list. The question I guess in terms of
this budget is whether this would be more appropriately kept in a capital
improvements program as a specific item, or whether you would create a pump
replacement program and provide a little bit more flexibility in continuing your
maintenance plan.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department, any comments to that statements?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Mr. Chair, if the Council would prefer I'm sure that probably the
flexibility would be appreciated. From the perspective of how it comes out like
that, over the years of working with this data it just turned out that it's easier, it
ends up being easier to be specific relative to the exact facility that you're
replacing because otherwise when it's not programmed in like that it becomes
harder to track the data and get the information and maintain the inventory and
this same inventory is for the GIS and the hydraulic model and everything. And
so when there's a doubt, I've always tried to err on the side of being project
specific, but it doesn't need to be presented that way, and it's up to the Council's
wishes I guess.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We will work with the Department and we'll place it in the most
appropriate category, Members. Subtotal for West Maui is now adjusted to
525,000. On Page 3 you will notice that we list the West Kuiaha PRV. We have
since shifted that to the Paia-Haiku region. We have completed the CIP review
today, Members, thank you, as presented by the Department in the 2005 budget
consideration. Any questions before adjourning?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, just as a reference, I guess earlier today
Director Tengan referenced an update of the CIP's that was forwarded to the
Committee last week Thursday. I just wasn't sure whether it was my committee
or your committee so I checked both and neither of our committees are yet in
receipt of this update. So perhaps the Director can follow-up on that particular
update for us.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, at the lunch break I went back to my office and, uh, it was
awaiting me to transmit it to the Council. So I'll be doing that tomorrow.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for that status. Any further questions, Members? If
not, we thank Ms. Taomoto, Ms. Kraftsow, and the rest of the Department. We
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appreciate your presence. Members, with no further business for today we stand
adjourned. (gavel)
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: CMT)
ACTION:
ADJOURN:

DEFER pending further discussion.
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